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Vision, Mission and Values of the IPCC

& VISION
—ERFE ~ ALE - HARMBEN
KRR ERGIE
A fair and impartial police

complaints system accountable
to the public

{#d5 MISSION

BEBESHNRFELATAE - BME
EFEPEMBIE THEKI(FIREM
HERZ  URERBERRAAREE
Ensure police complaints are handled in
a fair, impartial, effective and transparent
manner, and advise on improvement
to police procedures to enhance service
quality and public accountability

{E{EE VALUES

%37 Independence
A1IE Impartiality
#AE Integrity
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This Report covers the period of 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. During
this time, the public order situation in the Community has calmed down
considerably. The measures taken to contain the spread of COVID-19
have restricted public gatherings. Also, on 30 June 2020, the National
Security Law (“NSL”) came into effect. The NSL was aimed at stemming
acts of secession, sedition, terrorism, and also acts which aided or incited
these offences. This Law also acted to calm the public order situation then
and for the longer term. It was an important step towards the return of law
and order, allowing the Community to turn to more positive things.

The economy has been considerably weakened by the massive public
disorder and the destruction of property in the past two years. The
measures needed to contain COVID-19 also added to the Community’s
woes. It is time to rebuild the economy and address the social issues
faced by the Hong Kong’s Community.
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Whilst the NSL does act as a necessary and helpful deterrent to the kind
of mass disorder that the Community has experienced, effective law
enforcement requires cooperation between the Community and the
Police. That was what the Independent Police Complaints Council (IPCC)
undertook to do in the period under review, in keeping with its remit as
defined by the IPCC Ordinance.

As before, the IPCC guided itself by Four Principles distilled from its
statutory remit. They are (1) “Respect for Law”, (2) “Respect for Fact and
Fairess”, (3) “Respect for Best Practices”, and (4) “Respect for
Collaboration”. The application of one or more of these Four Principles will
be apparent from the activities under review.

The Thematic Study

The IPCC published the Thematic Study on 15 May 2020. This Study
covered the detailed facts relating to six Incident Days, including 9 and
12 June, 1 and 21 July, and 11 and 31 August 2019. Each of these
Incident Days was covered in an individual chapter in the Report.

To put these six Incident Days in proper context, the Study comprised six
other chapters covering, in addition to an opening chapter, a chapter on
methodology and sources of information, a chapter on synopsis of
complaints, and a concluding chapter, the following matters:

* Legal Powers, Constraints and Implications

* An Overview of the Public Order Events (POEs) arising from the Fugitive
Offenders Bill since June 2019

e Police Use of Force in Public Order Policing

e Police Identification during POEs

e Detention Arrangement at San Uk Ling Holding Centre

* Perceptions of Police Officers, Protesters and General Public

In the Thematic Study, all assertions of fact were carefully cross-
referenced to a verifiable source. The IPCC appealed to members of the
public for POEs-related information to facilitate the Council in ascertaining
facts pertinent to selected Incident Days so that a full factual record could
be made. The IPCC ultimately received over 23,500 photo attachments
and 22,500 video attachments/links from the public. The IPCC also took
reference of over 1,350 news articles and 650 hours of video footage to
verify the chronology of incidents. The IPCC studied current laws and
manuals of the Police and benchmarked them against the most relevant
international standards and practices to evaluate whether the existing
guidelines adopted by the Police were on par with such international
standards and determine how to improve policing and avoid future
complaints, if similar situations arise in the future. In addition, the IPCC
commissioned two surveys by independent parties, one of public opinion
and one among police officers, to form part of this record.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21
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In the Thematic Study Report, the IPCC made 52 forward-looking
recommendations with a view to improving service quality of the Police
and enhancing public trust in the Police. The IPCC has actively followed up
with the Police on their implementation progress of the 52
recommendations through regular Joint Meetings.

As part of the follow-up to the recommendations in the Thematic Study
Report, the IPCC also visited various Police units to examine the enhanced
facilities and improvement measures. In February 2021, the IPCC visited
Hung Hom Police Station to examine the enhanced Temporary Holding
Area. As of March 2021, the Police have completed 26 recommendations
and rolled out a total of 49 improvement measures, covering four major
areas: (i) enhancing release of public information and review of media
relations; (i) improvement of arrangements for temporary holding areas;
(i) enhancement of police operational deployment and strategies; and
(iv) strengthening of the Police’s internal management, coordination and
training. (For reference, as of June 2021, the Police have already
completed 32 out of 52 recommendations put forward in the Thematic
Study Report.)

Dealing with Complaints

For each Reportable Complaint where a Complainant had requested a full
investigation, the IPCC ensured that an Observer would attend and
monitor all site investigations and interviews of the Complainant and the
Complainee or Complainees. Thus, each investigation requires a
substantial investment of time by the Observer.

In 2020/21, our Observers attended 2,198 observations with an
attendance rate of 98.7%, which was on the rise for the fifth consecutive
year. As for POEs-related complaint cases, our Observers even attained an
attendance rate of 100%. Since 2009, Observers have spent over 15,000
hours conducting observations. The Community owes a great debt to each
Observer for their dedication. The IPCC salutes their public spiritedness!

The Thematic Study did provide the proper context to inform the IPCC in
the performance of its statutory duty to fully and fairly monitor the work
of the Police in investigation of the complaints arising from the POEs
between 9 June 2019 and 31 March 2021. By 31 March 2021, the IPCC
endorsed 333 complaints arising from the POEs from 9 June 2019.
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Reportable Complaints have been trending downward. In the year
2009/2010, the IPCC received reports of 3,686 Reportable Complaints
and for that year endorsed 3,827 investigation results of Complaints
Against Police Office (CAPO). Between 2020/2021, the IPCC only received
reports of 1,363 Reportable Complaints and endorsed the results of
1,390 CAPO investigations.

The IPCC has been studying the reasons for the trending down of
Reportable Complaints and the nature of allegations involved in these
complaints. Apart from the complaints relating to the POEs of the past two
years, the types of complaints have been clustering around attitudes of
officers while undertaking regular police work. The IPCC has made
appropriate recommendations to the Commissioner in response to such
clustering. Indeed, over the past 12 years the IPCC has made some 180
recommendations to the Commissioner through examination of the
complaint investigation results by CAPO. This does not include the 52
recommendations made in the Thematic Study.

Out of the total number of Reportable Complaints received, the
percentage of Withdrawn complaints and Not Pursuable complaints
remained at a high level because the Complainants failed to turn up at
interviews or refused to provide further assistance to CAPO. The
effectiveness of the police complaints system relies heavily on
Complainants’ cooperation to provide correct, accurate and complete
information in a timely manner to facilitate an impartial and thorough
examination of the cases and ensure justice for both Complainants and
Complainees.

The Council would like to reiterate that lodging a complaint is a very
serious matter. Whenever a Complainant exercises his/her right to lodge a
complaint, he/she also has the responsibility to provide complete and
accurate information as well as valid contact method so that the two-tier
police complaints system can function effectively to ensure fair and
impartial handling of complaint cases, and thus improve service quality of
the Police.

Thus, the provision of false or misleading information is a crime under the
Police Force Ordinance. If anyone is found to have made false allegations,
CAPO may, in consultation with the Department of Justice, prosecute the
Complainant for misleading police officers. In June 2020, a man who was
arrested for theft falsely claimed that he was beaten up by a police officer
inside the police station. However, after examination of the security
camera footage, the Police found that the man indeed created the injuries
himself by banging his head against the wall. The man was eventually
sentenced to seven months of imprisonment for theft and making false
report of commission of offence. Both the IPCC and CAPO treat false
complaints seriously. While Complainants have the right to complain
about any misconduct of police officers, the IPCC and CAPO will also
protect police officers from being falsely accused.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21
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Stakeholder Engagement

The IPCC continues to reach out to all of its stakeholders. During the
period under review, my fellow Members and | gave 27 media briefings
and interviews. Continuing a long-standing tradition, the IPCC has been
offering live webcasts of Joint Meetings with CAPO via IPCC website and
official YouTube channel to maintain high transparency amidst the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Apart from media interviews, the IPCC has reached out to over 31,000
stakeholders in the past four years through various activities, such as
briefings for police officers, talks in youth groups, secondary schools and
universities, functions such as the Youth Day in 2019. In addition, the
IPCC engaged with District Fight Crime Committees and professional
associations. A series of short films explaining the work of the IPCC were
being produced.

The IPCC held an Observers Workshop attended by close to 50 Observers.
Others who could not attend were invited to access the occasion by way
of video link. Also, a Sharing Session was held with police officers at the
Police Headquarters where | shared my experience of the past three years
as the IPCC Chairman and my experience generally in public service in the
past 50 years. The Session was attended by nearly 200 officers at the
Police Headquarters and another 200 through video link in two New
Territories Regions.

The IPCC believes that sincere and rational communication and
collaboration with the community are crucial for the effective operation of
the two-tier police complaints system, namely, investigation of complaints
by CAPO and monitoring of such investigations by the IPCC to ensure
thoroughness and fairness, as required by the IPCC Ordinance.
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Finally, | would like to state that | have been privileged and honoured to
have served as Chair for the past three eventful years of the IPCC. The IPCC
has weathered the storm of the past three years because of its
steadfastness in observing the Four Principles, (1) “Respect for Law”,
(2) “Respect for Fact and Fairness”, (3) “Respect for Best Practices”, and
(4) “Respect for Collaboration”. I am sure that the next Chair will continue
with this fine tradition.
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Police Complaints System in Hong Kong

Hong Kong has adopted a two-tier police complaints system. All
complaints against the Police are referred to the Complaints Against
Police Office (CAPO) of the Hong Kong Police Force for handling and
investigation. This is the first tier of the police complaints system.

After CAPO has completed the investigation of a Reportable Complaint, it will
submit the investigation report, together with relevant files, documents
and materials, to the Independent Police Complaints Council (IPCC) for
scrutiny.

If any doubt arises in the course of reviewing the investigation report and
the relevant materials, the IPCC will ask CAPO for clarification or further
information. If the IPCC finds the investigation inadequate, it may request
that the case be further investigated. Only when the IPCC completely
agrees that the complaint case has been properly handled will it endorse
the investigation report. This is the second tier of the police complaints
system.

\¢
v
v
KR E R E I E S EEgEZAERS
CAPO investigates IPCC reviews
complaints investigation reports
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Hong Kong’s two-tier police complaints system

The advantage of the two-tier system is that it ensures fair and just
handling of complaints against the Police. As an independent statutory
body, the IPCC can objectively observe, monitor and review the handling
and investigation of Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of
Police, and put forward opinions and recommendations regarding such
complaints to the Commissioner of Police and the Chief Executive.

AR ERR B AERG R
CAPO receives Reportable Complaints

l

EITRE
Investigations

l

R ERRFRZAERS
CAPO submits investigation reports

EESELRERS
IPCC reviews investigation reports

EEE8%
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IPCC reviews
investigation
reports

BARELR
Agrees with investigation results
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c REEMRA RNEERIEERN
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RUEEE

+ CAPO responds to Complainant

* Police take appropriate action
against Complainee

* |PCC may offer recommendations to
the Commissioner of Police and/or
the Chief Executive on improvements
to police practices and procedures

FRSAELSR
Disagrees with investigation results
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* IPCC seeks clarification or further
information from CAPO

TiERIRE
Rejects reports

- AIBRGHERREMAS

- AERFANEERE

c IRRIFEE S ENMEGENR

* May request CAPO to reinvestigate
complaint

* May interview witnesses to clarify
uncertainties

* May bring up the case during Working
Level Meetings or Joint IPCC/CAPO
Meetings
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The Role and Functions of the IPCC

The IPCC was established as a statutory body on 1 June 2009 under the
Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance (IPCCO) (Cap. 604,
Laws of Hong Kong) to observe, monitor and review the Commissioner of
Police’s handling and investigation of Reportable Complaints against the
Police. With the IPCCO taking effect, the Police have statutory duty to
comply with the IPCCs requests. The Ordinance enhances the
independence of the IPCC in carrying out its monitoring functions.

The IPCC comprises a Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and not fewer than
eight Members, who are all appointed by the Chief Executive. This
composition enables the IPCC to draw upon the diverse expertise and
experience of its Members to monitor CAPO’s investigation of complaints
against the Police in an independent, impartial and thorough manner. As
of 31 March 2021, the IPCC comprises 24 Members.
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FEEN R FEEEN T EMEMT ¢

The main functions of the IPCC as provided for under the IPCCO are:

Q)

1

oW O

>Ul 0

B BENBERERREREIEN AT AE R IIE
To observe, monitor and review the handling and investigation of
Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of Police

EREFRRE RO FEREARRRFEANEBAER
X BY1TEN
To monitor actions taken or to be taken in respect of any police
officer by the Commissioner of Police in connection with Reportable
Complaints

BRHERTEERNIZF PSR FI S5 BURERIL FFAITAK
S E NP

To identify any fault or deficiency in Police practices or procedures
that has led to or might lead to Reportable Complaints

HEBEERN FITHRERERBERKXFEHANER
GIPEEREL

To advise the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief Executive
of its opinions and/or recommendations in connection with
Reportable Complaints

a8 AR EE G R A B RIST

To promote public awareness of the role of the Council
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Moni oring Procedures of the IPCC

Under the two-tier police complaints system, after an investigation report
of a Reportable Complaint is submitted by CAPO to the IPCC, the
Secretariat will conduct a preliminary examination on it and may raise
Queries and ask for clarification or further information from CAPO. If the
Secretariat has no Query, the report will be submitted to Members for
scrutiny. Members can make further Queries and discuss the case with
CAPO at Working Level Meetings or Joint Meetings if necessary.

The IPCC also administers an Observers Scheme to discharge its
monitoring function and ensure that interviews and collection of evidence
are conducted by CAPO in a fair and impartial manner during the
investigation process. In addition, the IPCC may decide on a case-by-case
basis to interview Complainants, Complainees, witnesses or other persons
concerned with a view to assisting Members in understanding the
complaints and clarifying any matter in doubt. Both powers enable the
IPCC to perform its statutory functions more effectively.

If the IPCC’s final decision is not to endorse the investigation results of a
particular case, it may disclose the disagreement of both parties on the
findings of the investigation to the Chief Executive and/or the public.

BELEEeMER BEEgeEs
IPCC Secretariat IPCC Members
.

BRERKFMETHOGEM

Note: IPCC Observers may attend interviews and observe the collection of
evidence in connection with CAPO’s investigation of Reportable

Complaints.
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EZgZE KBRS
IPCC Members and
Observers

D6

Complaint received Vetting

NS E#=

RHE®
Raise Queries

EITHRE
Investigation

Ve
N

BEHM
No Query

N
SEREAE LI

Hzmastal
Observers Scheme

MmENMEF It B ZBERS
Vetting shared by four Sub-groups

RHLEH BREEA

BERESRERELY
Investigation
completed and
investigation report
submitted to the IPCC

BRREEZSEE
Clarification/provide
more information

MR ERRE
ERENEERIEEEE
If required, Working Level Meeting
between the IPCC and CAPO
to be conducted

N E—TSEZ
[ Further vetting

RAERLAELER
R
Case unresolved

EER/RIFERR
EE ST
Discussion at Joint
IPCC/CAPO Meeting

Raise Queries No Query

HEEggm
IPCC Interview

HEIFE—TBEE
Further vetting by Chairman

RHE®
Raise Queries

EEEE BBAEER

EIERFA

Investigation
result endorsed

Council’s
confirmation

BELER
FEEB
Investigation result
not endorsed

- BITBRE#RS
Report to the Chief Executive

- MAREBEESMAEERNER DL/
MEWIRFEHASRRNTHNER
Disclose disagreement on investigation
result/opinion on actions to be taken
against defaulting officers

Respond to
Complainant
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IPCC Interview

BRTEZRAETRSN > BEGHFAERE  |n addition to reviewing investigation reports, the IPCC may ask for
EEMEEAALEE > LUBBEEHE - §HET  interviews with persons related to the case to clarify matters. The IPCC
BN 1994 FRRHETT > EEFTEIT > BEE  Interview was introduced in 1994, and the IPCC may interview any person
GRANEREMENMBEREMEEZE  who may provide relevant information or assistance, including
RHEBRMIEMBEIN AL BFEKRF  Complainants, Complainees, witnesses, or other independent persons.
A~ IR~ BAEMBIALE -
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Complainant

b
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WA

Complainee

T
BA

Witness

HitEir A+
Other independent
person
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Observers Scheme
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The Observers Scheme was introduced in 1996 to strengthen the IPCC's
monitoring function. Under the Scheme, Observers appointed by the
Secretary for Security may attend interviews and observe the collection of
evidence pertinent to CAPO’s investigation of Reportable Complaints. IPCC
Members can likewise conduct such observations.

Insofar as practicable, CAPO will notify the IPCC at least 48 hours in
advance of any impending interview or collection of evidence. The IPCC
Secretariat will then notify Observers of the observations. Apart from
pre-arranged observations, Observers can also attend and observe
investigations by CAPO without making prior appointments.

The role of Observer is primarily to observe and report. The Observer is to
remain fair and impartial without interfering or offering personal opinions
while observing the conduct of interviews or collection of evidence.

After each observation, the Observer will submit to the IPCC a report
stating whether the interview or collection of evidence has been
conducted in a fair and impartial manner. Should any irregularity be
reported, the IPCC will follow up with CAPO.

All persons who are to be interviewed by CAPO in connection with
Reportable Complaint can request an Observer to be present during the
interview. Upon receipt of such request, the IPCC will make every effort to
arrange the observation accordingly.

02

BE2021F3H31H >
BrESHE 120 RBRES o
As of 31 March 2021, there are
120 IPCC Observers.
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Appointment of Observers
Section 33 of IPCCO

The IPCC Observers are appointed by the Secretary for Security. To ensure
their impartiality, the following persons are NOT eligible for appointment
as Observers:

1. A person who holds an office of emolument, whether permanent or
temporary, in a Government bureau or department

2. The Secretary-General, the Legal Adviser or any other employee of the
Council

3. Aformer member of the Police Force

BEEgHESs
IPCC Observer

~

CAPO Officer

ﬂ
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g MR ER R R
Joint Meetings: IPCC and CAPO

BEENRAERRGEHRRITEERE  The IPCC and CAPO conduct quarterly Joint Meetings to discuss matters
& sImiRrERNERETE - relating to police complaints.

ATERTBETREZE NI B/EE  To enable the public to better understand the work of the IPCC, part of
ERARABDETRREESIE - BFE  each Joint Meeting is open to the public and the media. The dates and
ERNBABANEEZETRIANEZEMN  agendas of the Joint Meetings are published in advance on the IPCC's
WERT > RAMOEENERLCHTE  website. Minutes of the open part of each meeting are also uploaded to
FEEEZT ML (Wwww.ipcc.gov.hk) o the IPCC’s website (www.ipcc.gov.hk).
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Reportable Complaints and Notifiable Complaints

AEERISR Reportable Complaints

EERKTF CIETEMREENEFKAE  “Reportable Complaints” refer to complaints lodged by members of the

FERPBEBMENKRIIABRITARYE  public that are not vexatious or frivolous and are made in good faith, and

HEKRRF - BERFHNBHEBILHE A  are pertinent to the conduct of police officers while on duty or who

ETATENALT (HEALR) E@thfE  identify themselves as police officers while off duty. The complaint should

H o MBENIFEB RIS EEEFERNESF °©  be made by or on behalf of a person directly affected by the police
misconduct.

RFLERBNBEREORE > IR AEHR  CAPO must submit investigation reports to the IPCC for scrutiny pursuant
BN ATREFHELEEZ  FB> T  to the Ordinance. However, investigation reports and information of the

I ERMNATHREMERAEARK  following complaints need not be submitted to the IPCC:
BEg

o MIMRAFEHEELMINEEREIIFEL <« Complaints arising from the issue of summons or imposition of fixed
ERE B MM AT penalty, which solely relate to the validity of the issue

o KIFRAUBZEAEBAENSMHEL <« Complaints lodged by a person in his official capacity as a member of
EOECE the Police Force

s BREMZEZEHBFAEEEANBRS

Complaints that fall under the scope of investigation of other statutory
bodies
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Notifiable Complaints

“Notifiable Complaints” are complaints not categorised as “Reportable
Complaints”, or complaints that need not be submitted to the IPCC as
listed above. These include anonymous complaints or complaints lodged
by persons who are not directly affected by the case.

CAPO must regularly submit a summary of “Notifiable Complaints” to the
IPCC for scrutiny. If the IPCC considers any of these cases to be
“Reportable Complaints”, the IPCC may raise suggestions to CAPO, and
CAPO will then need to reconsider the categorisation of the complaint.
Moreover, the IPCC may request CAPO to submit further explanation or
supporting information in relation to the categorisation of any particular
complaint.
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Classification of Investigation Results

—RiRFASR—IEHZN—IERIEZE . A complaint may consist of one or more allegations. After CAPO has
REEKRFERREEALTE > GRI\EFA  conducted a full and thorough investigation into an allegation, it will be

BHERDBEATIIREZ— ! classified as one of the following six types according to the findings:
%H = MEFARENIEEEEMN I RER R 5EE®
1 EHIAEE 514 ERBBE -

SkimEAsp MTERR AR RIS LS  BREMBRFAS
- L RGN BT EERENES > TEBHEE
{B:8ERBE AIBEE BREIS REREEEEEE) -
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e ERDBERFEE  BEGRIIA TEARL BN

%HEEE' BE-

E E iigﬂ_ﬁ

FEN=N
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HERATRAT A HREMSNTESERRAG Kb
2 IREERYA T EIBEH ) -

4 ﬁiﬁ = MILHFANIEERBERDERSS » 5EERIIA TR
E{Eﬁ*ﬁﬁ WA RN A RERBATRFANBELRER > TR
BEEEREABENRT  INASBRETIEER
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E—RERHRIS TERTE B KHFERRERFB
o BEERENER  TERESKRFABREEBAR -
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Substantiated An allegation is classified as “Substantiated” when there is sufficient
reliable evidence to support the allegation made by the Complainant.

Substantiated Other An allegation is classified as “Substantiated Other Than Reported”
when matters other than the original allegations raised by the
Than Reported Complainant, which are closely associated with the complaint and

have a major impact on the investigation, have been discovered and
are found to be substantiated.

Not FUlly An allegation is classified as “Not Fully Substantiated” when there is
. some reliable evidence to support the allegation made by the

Substantiated Complainant, but is insufficient to fully substantiate the complaint.

Unsubstantiated An allegation is classified as “Unsubstantiated” when there is insufficient

evidence to support the allegation made by the Complainant.

No Fault An allegation is classified as “No Fault” where the allegation is made
either because of misinterpretation of the facts or misunderstanding;
or when there is sufficient reliable evidence showing that the actions
of the officer concerned were fair and reasonable in the circumstances,
done in good faith or conformed to police regulations and orders.

False An allegation is classified as “False” when there is sufficient reliable
evidence to indicate that the allegation made by the Complainant is
untrue, be it a complaint with clear malicious intent, or a complaint
which is not based upon genuine conviction or sincere belief but with
no element of malice.

When a complaint is classified as “False”, CAPO will consider, in

consultation with the Department of Justice as necessary, prosecuting
the Complainant for misleading a police officer.
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Other Complaint Classifications

Some complaints are handled by other means so that no full investigation
is necessary. These complaints can be classified as:

MEEREE RIERFAFITEER -

ENERF AREIRS > BEESNEERER > BEKRHFAREREEM
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RIGFERRGEHRAFER  AEREREETEERE » WREFR
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Withdrawn A complaint is classified as “Withdrawn” when the Complainant does not wish to
pursue the complaint after making it.

Even when a Complainant initiates the withdrawal of a complaint, the IPCC will ensure
that no undue influence has been exerted on the Complainant, and that the Police can
learn from the complaint. The IPCC will also ensure that CAPO will take appropriate
remedial actions.

A Complainant’s withdrawal does not necessarily result in the case being classified as
“Withdrawn”. The IPCC and CAPO will examine the evidence available to ascertain
whether full investigation is warranted despite the withdrawal and/or whether any of
the allegations are substantiated on the basis of information available.

Not Pursuable An allegation is classified as “Not Pursuable” when:

* The identity of the officer in the complaint cannot be ascertained
» The cooperation of the Complainant cannot be obtained to proceed with the
investigation

The above definition does not mean that no further action will be taken when the
Complainant cannot identify the Complainee. CAPO will make an effort to identify the
Complainee(s) on the basis of the information available. Only after such an effort has
been made to no avail will the conclusion be reached that the identity of the
Complainee cannot be ascertained.

If a complaint has been classified as “Not Pursuable” due to lack of cooperation from
the Complainant, it may be reactivated later when the Complainant comes forward to
provide the necessary information.

Curtailed A complaint is classified as “Curtailed” when it has been registered with CAPO but is
curtailed — i.e. not fully investigated — on the authorisation of the Chief Superintendent
(Complaints and Internal Investigations Branch), owing to special circumstances such
as known mental condition of the Complainant.

Inf U The “Informal Resolution Scheme” aims at speedy resolution of minor complaints,
nrormatty . . . . .

such as allegations of impoliteness or use of offensive language, the nature of which
Resolved is considered relatively minor.

A minor complaint suitable for Informal Resolution will not be subject to full
investigation. Instead, a senior officer of at least the rank of Chief Inspector of Police
will act as Conciliating Officer and make separate enquiries with the Complainant and
the Complainee regarding the facts of the complaint. If the Conciliating Officer is
satisfied that the matter is suitable for Informal Resolution and the Complainant
agrees, the complaint will be informally resolved.
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1986

UMELCO Police Group

The establishment of the IPCC can be traced back to 1974 when the
Commissioner of Police set up CAPO to investigate police complaints from
the public. Having considered that the investigations should involve an
independent body, the Commissioner of Police invited the sub-committee
of the Unofficial Members of the Executive and Legislative Councils
(UMELCO), which was responsible for handling police and security
matters, to monitor CAPO complaint investigations in 1977. This was the
prototype of the two-tier police complaints system. In 1978, the UMELCO
Police Group presented its first report on police complaints to the then
Governor (reporting period from 1 September 1977 to 30 April 1978),
which was then submitted to the Legislative Council for review on 16
August 1978. From then on, the UMELCO Police Group prepared an
annual progress report.

After the UMELCO Police Group was established, there was a drastic
increase in the number of police complaints which required its
monitoring. The heavy workload indicated that there was a need to
strengthen and broaden the structure of the monitoring system. Therefore,
the Government set up a working group to review the UMELCO Police
Group’s monitoring of CAPOQ in early 1984.

RFEREEEREZST

1986 % » BUNEEIHIA KB T (F/\EE
#E HERNEBIBTRIZEZMEIFE
THRELELRFEEEH/NE > ER—
BEBINKFHELSFTEEREZEE - RIE
S AEZEEERERMAXTH
T URMII—E#HBMER > L s
RFEHEFEERELZEG -
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Police Complaints Committee

In 1986, after the Government meticulously reviewed the working group’s
recommendations, the then Governor restructured the UMELCO Police
Group and set up an independent police complaints monitoring
committee, comprising Justices of the Peace as members and a
supporting secretariat. It was also renamed as the Police Complaints
Committee.
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2004-2009

Independent Police Complaints Council —
before becoming a statutory body

In December 1994, the Committee was further revamped to pave the way
for becoming an independent statutory body and clarifying the Council’s
powers and functions. Both the English and Chinese names of the Council
were modified to better reflect its independence.

The Bill that suggested transforming the then IPCC into a statutory body
was introduced to the Legislative Council in July 1996. The Bill proposed
clarifying the powers and functions of the then IPCC in order to reinforce
its authority in handling police complaints and enhance public awareness
of the Council as an independent monitoring entity.

As some Legislative Council Members raised a number of Committee
Stage Amendments that might bring fundamental changes to the police
complaints system, the Bill was withdrawn by the Government on 23 June
1997.
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Independent Police Complaints Council —
after becoming a statutory body

In 2004, the Government relaunched its plan to transform the then IPCC
into a statutory body with a view to empowering it with a legal basis to
discharge its functions and raise public confidence in the two-tier police
complaints system. On 29 June 2007, the Independent Police Complaints
Council Bill was gazetted. The Bill was tabled at the Legislative Council on
11 July 2007 for First Reading.

The Legislative Council passed the IPCCO in July 2008. The Secretary for
Security then decided that the IPCCO would come into effect on 1 June
2009 and the IPCC become a statutory body on the same date. The
Chinese name of the Council was modified to highlight its monitoring role
while the English name was retained.
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Number of Investigation Reports and Allegations

BEREBNAERGFERNF

Number of Reportable Complaint cases received and endorsed

2020/21 2019/20
BENAERK FEZR
Reportable Complaint cases received 1 ’363 1,478
BB AR RIZREZR
b 1,390 1,293

Reportable Complaint cases endorsed

EAREHAAN (2020548 1HE20214%F  During the reporting period (1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021), the IPCC
3A31H) BEEEHBERFERRF received reports from CAPO on the investigation of 1,363 new Reportable
1,363 RV EERRIGFERZNFAERS > Complaint cases, representing a decrease of 7.8% compared to the
BETPE7.8% ° previous year.

FEHA > BREG®B T 1,390 REEHKIEF In the same period, the IPCC endorsed the results of investigation for

BENRAEER (B1F47 FBEBMEZR) > % 1,390 Reportable Complaint cases (including 47 reviewed cases), representing

FIBMN7.5% ° BRTEBREZRES > B KRBIE  an increase of 7.5% compared to the previous year. There were a total of

ER2311E  BELAL6% HREE 2,311 allegations excluding the reviewed cases, representing an increase

W=ZIEIEERREFA 1TTARE BEX  of 4.6% compared to the previous year. The three major allegations in

£/ MHEWE TR K BT - descending order were “Misconduct/Improper Manner/Offensive Language”,
“Neglect of Duty” and “Assault”.

BUBEREHRERFEEY | 2020/21 TIFRE



£ TF Chapter2 | EEZR4G3FERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

BENIEEHT (BUEPE) TRTR !
The following chart shows details of the number of allegations endorsed (by nature):

EETiRBREE
Allegations endorsed by the IPCC

[l 2020/2135%4R% [l 2019/20 i5ix4agk

Total number of allegations 2 9 31 1 Total number of allegations 2 2 O 9
e [ " " "
BERXE/MESHE 910 41.2%

Misconduct/
Improper Manner/
Offensive Language

Neglect of Duty 1,003 45.4%
Assault 175 7.9%
B AR 116 5.0%
Unnecessary Use 55 2.5%
of Authority

TR I 27 1.2%

Threat 26 1.2%
2GR l16 0.7%
Fabrication of Evidence 40 1.8%

EB1EF |3 01%

Police Procedures 0 0%
HthIET |2 0a%

Other Offences 0 0%

& | ARNEURE - 5O REM A SERHUZ100% ©
FEHFBREZFENZA31E -

Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.

Figures are as of 31 March of the respective reporting year.
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Investigation Results

202021 FE BB 2,311 0I5 &
do KEEPAENIEER7021E EH72
RS2 TERBEE  AFAAKEES
BHERN10.3%  18BKII & I RERR
BEABE (152.6%) @ 418K % TEX
TEFABE (150.6%) > 208 TEWK A
MEAEE) (1529.6%) » 3640 A NI
HiBFE) (1551.9%) > 36 TRAIRIIA NER
TEE) » (GHBEAEY5.1% o

EHEFN 1,609 BRERETE2HEAENI
PEd > 239 NEBREA AR hE
RETEEBAERERN14.9% 60618
W54 TEREEl (1537.7%) > 764 TR
5z THSEIBE ] (1h47.5%) < BEIEER
5% T&IEERE ) o

Among the 2,311 allegations endorsed in 2020/21, 702 were fully
investigated. 72 (10.3% of those fully investigated) were classified as
“Substantiated”, 18 (2.6%) as “Substantiated Other Than Reported”,
4 (0.6%) as “Not Fully Substantiated”, 208 (29.6%) as “Unsubstantiated”,
364 (51.9%) as “No Fault”, and 36 (5.1%) as “False”.

Among the remaining 1,609 allegations which did not require full
investigation, 239 (14.9% of those not fully investigated) were “Informally
Resolved”, 606 (37.7%) were classified as “Withdrawn”, 764 (47.5%) as
“Not Pursuable”. There was no allegation being classified as “Curtailed”.
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2019/20%012020/21 FERAEHEREBIRLERAR T -
The following table shows a comparison of figures regarding investigation results in 2019/20 and 2020/21:

EkﬁgﬁLLE’Juﬂgn\n%
Investigation results endorsed by the IPCC

Il 2020/2135%48% 2 31 1 B 2019/20 #5848 2 209
Total number of allegations ) Total number of allegatlons

EEREE 72 10.3% R EABHIEE
Substantiated 57 7.2% Allegations that required full investigation
2020/21 2019/20

Substantiated Other 19 2.4%
Than Reported

RERREEREE I1s 26% 702 797

BETEEREE
Not Fully Substantiated

4 0.6%
2 0.3%

4o St

AR E 208 29.6%
Unsubstantiated 257 32.2%

NI EE 364 51.9%
No Fault 403 50.6%

ERAHE 36 5.1%
False 59 7.4%

FEAEER R - 239 14.9%
Informally Resolved 202 14.3%
Withdrawn 462 32.7%
Not Pursuable 748 53.0%

EBEETEEATHEE
i ANENIER 0 BRI EIAER S Z2100% o Allegations that did not require full investigation
FEHFHEZFEN3A3LAE - 2020/21 2019/20
Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures. 1 60 1 2
Figures are as of 31 March of the respective reporting year. 9 9 ,41
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Number of allegations involved in the Reportable Complaint cases endorsed by the IPCC
(by nature and by results of investigations)

fFaTE -
=i B
%E%ft/mnﬁun B SF E34T PR
Misconduct/ Neglect of Dut Assault Unnecessary Use
Improper Manner/ g y of Authority
Offensive Language
F{RYear 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20  2020/21  2019/20 2020/21 2019/20

L2 MAERIFEIE Allegations that required full investigation

EEREE

Substantiated 16 15 54 41 0 0 2 1

RSB

{B:EFABE

Substantiated 1 1 16 17 0 0 1 1
Other Than

Reported

EER2RABE
Not Fully 2 0 2 1 0 1 0 0
Substantiated

BILEE

Unsubstantiated 106 147 79 76 9 19 9 9

pirkE3 GE

No Fault 90 91 239 281 4 2 27 24

ERTHE

Faloo 13 14 6 8 9 13 1 1

it

Subtotal 228 268 396 424 22 35 40 36

EREITREAEAISIE Allegations that did not require full investigation

ERMESNRR
Informally 137 123 102 79 0 0 0 0
Resolved
& EFigE
Withdrawn 271 201 243 216 43 29 37 6
HEIBE
Not Pursuable 375 318 227 284 103 111 39 13
Ui 783 642 572 57 146 140 76 1
Subtotal 9 9
EE S

1,011 910 968 1,003 168 175 116 55
Total
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i U EHE e 1y

Fabrlocatlon of Threat Police Procedures Other Offences Total
Evidence

2020/21 2019/20 = 2020/21 2019/20 = 2020/21 2019/20 = 2020/21 2019/20 @ 2020/21 2019/20

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 72 57
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 19
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 2

2 0 2 6 0 0 1 0 208 257
1 3 0 2 3 0 0 0 364 403
5 21 1 2 0 0 1 0 36 59
8 24 3 10 3 0 2 0 702 797

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 239 202
3 7 9 3 0 0 0 0 606 462
5 9 15 13 0 0 0 0 764 748
8 16 24 16 0 0 0 0 1,609 1,412
16 40 27 26 3 0 2 0 2,311 2,209
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Police Actions Against Defaulting Officers

EARESFEREEG@BIMEZEF > X During the reporting year, disciplinary proceedings or internal actions
B/ REFAERERLEICHNEMA  were taken against 87 police officers regarding 64 cases endorsed by the
1T W ROLRER - PIEEFR TR IPCC. The following table shows the breakdown of figures:

£75112019/2052020/21 FEMEE BB IFESR
MERNEHEASHEINTH

Police actions taken against defaulting officers

regarding cases endorsed by the IPCC during 2019/20 and 2020/21

A B EH Number of officers

2020/21 2019/20
A FISEERER 0 0
Criminal proceedings
Disciplinary review
C HthER1T
Other internal actions
&4 Warnings 28 25
sliz8 Advice 52 53
428 Total 87 80

52019/ 20 FEMNHFERERBDEZEZE > FURE
Note: Figures for 2019/20 have been adjusted following case reviews.
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Queries Raised with CAPO

£2020/21 FE > BEGRRFERRE
HIEH1,44510EH > REBREEESR
RIFERRBHOSEER > fIENRH
ERENADT > IBRSTARTRHESEY
RER UREEERNERNITHEERN
EFRHNEEES -

REBE(EEGRO) > KRFERRAYARE
ELENEN SERZTTWIRKFER
ANEE > ERERGHEZERHEL
MERER  RABREXTZEERNEZ
NNEZEREERMERE AFER &
ZERAURA—FHARFERRBIRD
B EFEERRI I FEEEHRER
FERRB > EEGEGREHRERE
A EBBZFIRFEEE

WEHAR > HAEB06IREATEBIFRIE
HppEHAEHEEEBEANE SR
GRmE > SEIMEERRAER

S TF Chapter2 | EEZR453RFERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

The IPCC raised a total of 1,445 Queries with CAPO in 2020/21. These
Queries included various requests to CAPO, for example, amending the
content of investigation reports, providing more information and
clarification regarding the reports, and the IPCC making improvement
recommendations on the Police practices and procedures, etc.

Pursuant to the IPCCO, CAPO must reply to IPCC’'s Queries. When the IPCC
receives responses from CAPO, the vetting teams will scrutinise the
information, explanation and views before passing them to Members of
vetting Sub-groups for consideration of accepting the reply. The IPCC may
raise follow-up Queries regarding the same matters or bring up the
matters to Working Level Meetings for further discussion with CAPO when
necessary. Investigation reports will be endorsed only when the IPCC is
satisfied with CAPO’s explanation.

During the reporting period, there were 806 Queries requiring further
actions. The remaining Queries were given satisfactory explanation and
resolved after further Queries by the IPCC or discussion with CAPO at
meetings.

RIFERR
CAPO

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21



EEERLEANFAESEBAER TR
The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding Queries raised by the IPCC:

ﬁiﬁ;ﬁ?m ber of Queries 1 9 4 4 5 Ill%uﬁfe{fE EE fu?ri%iﬁ] 8 O 6

requiring further actions

FEBFRENEN
Number of Queries
requiring further actions

=R
Total number of Queries

15 Year 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20

H:#1$E Nature of Queries

HAEERDE
Classification of 391 361 207 212

investigation results

HEEFRERNEFNES
Recommended improvements to 22 17 21 16
Police practices and procedures

BREBERANER
Compliance with Police practices 12 8 5 3
and procedures

THEEENIES
Reasons for exercising 10 2 0 1
police power

HEBERABNITHRUEER
Comments on actions 23 16 16 12
against defaulting officers

HAmEREER
Clarification of information 736 628 439 398
in investigation reports

AEEME

Investigation thoroughness 184 155 85 77

HithE:

Other Queries 67 57 33 28

.*;E;k 1,445 1,244 806 747
otal
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||P

EGRRE Classification of investigation results

EZEEE202021 FEMBEER DR Atotal of 391 Queries were raised by the IPCC in 2020/21 regarding the
H391EEH > MKTFERRFTEBERER  classification of findings, of which 207 required further actions by CAPO
ENEARLF207E  ALEFUEEREZE and consequently the investigation results of 197 allegations were
ERVIEER 19718 61 .

reclassified MRAEE MESEREE )
Rom “Unsubstantiated” to “Substantiated”
= [t B 38 B Mg EEEE
reclassified “No Fault’ Sy S
from o Fault to ubstantiate
fclassiﬁed RABE s MEERESE)
from “Not Pursuable” to “Substantiated”
fclassiﬁed & (el . MESEREE )
from “Withdrawn” to “Substantiated”
S Mt i e | Gk ety
reclassified “No Fault . .
from 0 Fault to nsubstantiate
T MK ] i Mif iR sE
reclassified “Unsub e o Fault”
[ nsubstantiate to o Fault
= M POl I 2 (B AR B
reclassified v b 4 el
from Unsubstantiate to alse
= MESEIBE B B 5
reclassified . ) , ,
from Not Pursuable to False

15

reclassified, including:

Belb:)
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The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding changes of classification:

2020/21 FESZEGBANBYERESR
Changes of classification endorsed by the IPCC in 2020/21

5 & 9 #8 Final classification

, EiER2 s

de EEEER EWER  AER LA  SEFR 0T pRRE e

g N Substantiated  Not Fully  Unsubstantiated  No Fault False Withdrawn Total
classification . TN

Substantiated

EEAEE
Substantiated N/A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
EESR
HARE
Not Fully 3 N/A 0 0 0 0 0 3
Substantiated
HAER
Unsubstantiated 10 4 N/A 36 2 4 0 56
No Fault 15 0 22 N/A 1 17 14 69
R AHE
False 0 0 1 3 N/A 3 1 8
BIRBEE
Not Pursuable X 0 5 28 5 N/A 3 43
(|
Withdrawn 4 0 0 14 0 0 N/A 18
ELE
Total 34 4 28 81 8 24 18 197

tEoh > BREEFRBIA T 1818 IRELLHKR  Moreover, the IPCC endorsed 18 counts of “Substantiated Other Than
BEPEE) NiEE > ERANEREEE  Reported” allegations, nine of which were registered after the IPCC raised
EERUEHEBMEM - ZEF12]%E  Queries. Another 12 incidents were recorded as “Outwith” matters*.
etk IS HIE o

EREE RETAERCERERBSCNEE SLFEERATHRPRINE > BERFATLBRBIFE o
* An “Outwith” matter refers to any breach of discipline or Police Force orders that has been disclosed in the course of complaint investigation but
is not closely related to the complaint.
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RIB(EESHRANDE 3K (D) BEEgH
MERERWIZF RSB AIAES | B
MBRARFEZE > MEBEERM =
THREFHERZ WSHPR > BEEEM
MEEBRERMIZFERT 2215 -

A—k =

& Chapter2 | E2Z3GHRERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

Recommended improvements to Police practices and
procedures

Under section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO, the IPCC may make recommendations
to the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief Executive if it identifies
any fault or deficiency in the Police practices or procedures that has led to
or might lead to complaint. During the reporting period, the IPCC
suggested 22 improvement measures to the Police.

BREBERMER

EEORRFERRRHEN » UEE
RFERERDROEFASEITERER
EEEEBREREHERMNIZR - REBP
R BREENERARE12E

Compliance with Police practices and procedures

The IPCC may raise Queries with CAPO to ascertain whether the police
officers involved in a complaint case have complied with relevant Police
practices and procedures in exercising their constabulary powers. During
the reporting period, 12 Queries were raised under this category.

TEERENES

ELEETRHIEBAEERDFHERE
BeB®REHER > BEEENEFTAEEER
TRFNIEHRRER 10REEH -

Reasons for exercising police power

The use of police power by officers in the discharge of their duties is also
a concern to the IPCC. During the reporting period, the IPCC raised 10
Queries in respect of reasons for the use of police power.

HEREERASHNTHREER

HARMEHBASE LA RDCETE
BEFRREROBE  EEZENIME
ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%@ﬂéﬂymﬁﬁ%ﬂj%‘\ﬁ » BlMTE)

BREEBERMBIENBZENS - REH
|99  EEEEMARMERIEL 23REM -

Comments on actions against defaulting officers

While the dispensing of advice or disciplinary action against police
officers is a matter for the Commissioner of Police, the IPCC will examine
the actions taken or to be taken to ascertain whether they commensurate
with the seriousness of the offences. The IPCC raised 23 Queries on such
actions during the reporting period.

HAmEmREEH

BER > EEERBREERESAEH
REBH T - IR T 736I0E M > Bl
ERBFERERE NS RIERTSE
Kl o

Clarification of information in investigation reports

During the reporting period, the IPCC raised 736 Queries regarding
ambiguous points in the investigation reports. For example, CAPO was
requested to provide more background information of the complaint
cases.

RER ELEGHIZH IS4IEFRAST
BERHEENEN  BERKRFEREMRSA
EHRINEFANTE > fling REAMUK
EELHES-

Investigation thoroughness

During the reporting period, the IPCC raised 184 Queries regarding the
thoroughness of police investigations. These Queries included requests to
CAPO for more in-depth investigation by conducting interviews with
witnesses and collection of more evidence.
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Observers Scheme

2020/21 REMEH 2 1 98 2019/20 B 2.127
Total number of observation 9 Total number of observation 9

FEAZHNRBEOBRN P EHF HReEmMERWETENSEEF
Number of scheduled observation and Number of observation of interviews and
observation without prior appointment collection of evidence
2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20
ALk HEem
Scheduled 2,158 2,117 Interviews 1,760 LA
e NSRS SRR E
Without prior 40 10 Collection of 438 631
appointment evidence
4281 Total 2,198 2,127 #4548 Total 2,198 2,127

200021 FE > BHEEGMNEEREBEEH  Under the Observers Scheme, 2,198 observations were conducted by
EITT 2,198 RE > REFELEFA3.3% > Members and Observers of the IPCC in the year 2020/21, representing an
ERFELLHNE 2,158R » RETELNBY  increase of 3.3% compared to the previous year. Among them, 2,158
B4OR - 122,198 REREH » 51,760 were scheduled observations and 40 were conducted without prior
EHRRGH HER438RNEEREZBWE  appointment. Out of the 2,198 observations, 1,760 involved the conduct
HT{E - of interviews and 438 involved the collection of evidence.

R ERERRVIER
Notifications from CAPO

BREHEERRIEERMNEF
Number of observations attended by IPCC Observers
and notifications received

2020/21 2019/20
HE#IER Observations attended 2,198 2,127
@A Notifications received 2,228 2,204
HELEE B EiEm) 98.7% 96.5%

Attendance rate (Observations/Notifications received)
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RFERAGBETTTHERT » NE
TEEANERERER > GTEEEAILRN
LBNBEREH - 202021 E > BHE
RERFERR 2,228 REA -

FEAREHAN > BEEETHRREHFT 2,198
RER > SEBERTENIZRENRE  HE

BEAMN98.7%  HELEEREFLAHT
2.2% °

), ENIERH
Notifiable Complaints

AN RRFEREF

£ TF Chapter2 | EEZR4G3FERIE Monitoring the Handling of Complaints

CAPO has agreed that, insofar as practicable, the IPCC will be notified at
least 48 hours in advance of any impending interview or collection of
evidence. In 2020/21, 2,228 notifications were received from CAPO.

During the reporting period, IPCC Observers attended 2,198 observations,
including interviews and collection of evidence, amounting to 98.7% of
the notifications received. The attendance rate increased by 2.2%
compared to the previous year.

Number of Notifiable Complaint cases

RELEEZNANGRFERE

Notifiable Complaint cases examined by the IPCC

EMMERARAERK

2020/21 2019/20
860 1,686
1 6

Cases re-categorised as Reportable Complaints

RB(BEEEREDFF > RFERERA
ERREETRIANEGRFHNEREE
g8 > TERBIEZRFREABANG
KRIFAVIER - EEHEEGRRAERKRAFER
BARERRT  BEORHFERRFL
HENESE  RFERRATRENTEZ
FIZEFHYERLR o

FHREHA > BEGELTS0RANG
KRIFHERRE >  REFERIBTELI% -
KERE HP—SRHEXCREETE
RN E R A A BRI ©

Under section 9 of the IPCCO, CAPO must regularly submit summary of
Notifiable Complaints to the IPCC for examination and explain the reasons
for categorising the complaints as Notifiable Complaints. If the IPCC
considers that any of these cases should be classified as Reportable
Complaints instead, the IPCC will give suggestions to CAPO accordingly,
and CAPO will then need to reconsider the categorisation.

During the reporting period, summaries of 860 Notifiable Complaints were
examined by the IPCC, representing a decrease of 49% compared to the
previous year. After examination, one case was re-categorised as
Reportable Complaint as per IPCC’'s recommendations.
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Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM)

REFREHNVERKF

Number of EDM cases

KREEGBERMRETMEHIER
EDM cases examined by the IPCC

BB EAAHERRS

Cases re-categorised as Reportable Complaints

EMBRARANG K

2020/21 2019/20
609 528
0 1
0 0

Cases re-categorised as Notifiable Complaints

12019/ 20 FENHFERERDERCSERE » FTURE -
Note: Figures for 2019/20 have been adjusted following case examination.

AEANEEMEEMNRFERNERA
B BEEENRFHERRN2015F5]
ARER MG > EIENRFZRF U5
AR NI RRIBE IR AR 5 —TRIERE ©

EHET > (FHRFHTREBBRHFE
ZRIBERNREREEZRAEMEENE
EERK - MRHFATBERER MK
RIBIRESFIER > TR EREHUENR
B TR B IR o ARSI A 50E A
RERDERE  RHAERRBERRR
ERARERNAKFERNIRTELEER
#Z o

FHREHA > BEEGHBRT 609 REH

REFNMEHIEENEZ  BEFLAT
153% °
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To handle minor complaints more effectively and make optimal use of
investigation resources, the IPCC and CAPO introduced the EDM in 2015
as an alternative to the formal complaint investigation process for
handling minor complaints.

Through the EDM, a Complainant can directly reflect his/her
dissatisfaction and views to the commander of the Formation concerned.
If the Complainant is still unsatisfied with the results of the EDM, he/she
may lodge a formal complaint. In order to maintain the integrity of the
EDM and ensure appropriate categorisation, CAPO is required to regularly
submit a gist of the EDM cases to the IPCC for vetting.

During the reporting period, the IPCC examined 609 EDM cases,
representing an increase of 15.3% compared to the previous year.
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Public Enquiries

ARBERE  BEERITARBEM
TREOEFEHARESR - TREH
R BEZEGHIKF 14901 RAREBE
i HEF B FEAKRENESR o R
BoRGEEEERERMENERIN > HER
ERAREATEE MERBRHFERS
B AERFEENSEREFESTERL
BER > &A1 EERBAENRRERLNE R
EEFIRIE o
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In order to enhance transparency, the IPCC has set up various channels for
the public to make enquiry or express their opinions. During the reporting
period, the IPCC received 14,901 public enquiries via telephone, post,
email, fax and in person. Excluding enquiries that were not directly related
to the IPCC, those enquiries concerning large-scale public order events,
the two-tier police complaints system, including enquiries or suggestions
relating to complaint cases and the Observers Scheme, were handled in
accordance with the timeframe specified under the IPCC’s performance
pledge.
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EEERTRE—BUEBRAKRENR
Al AT~ AIEMBIRE > B AER
RIS KRR RIFLHNEE
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BRBERNEE—IR > TEMERERR
ERHEET BHEE  2RMEFHHE
BiR -

ATEREER BEEIRB(EZTER
B E8ME (D) EBERABRKFAL
BER > ERRERERAEFAEMR
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B ELZ9988 RBERNEER]
B REARFERRBTHTERESD
# BRESERASEZNEE -

BET S HELEEBEBRBRENEZE
F~#BEINE REEBRRBERFAS
Byt 75 > WAL IR REHEBE 180K
E2% > HELBOESEIN KEEHR -
MR F IS5 IMESTE - 1£2020/21F
B> @rnHigH22EES  BLEEETE
BRFERERREAEEKRBZERERR > B
HTRNEEEESEAERM > 8
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4. BIEERRERENMYEERETE
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The IPCC always upholds its principles of handling all complaint cases
fairly, impartially and based on evidence, and considers it necessary to
learn from experience, draw lessons from complaint cases and make
improvement to prevent recurrence of similar complaints. This is an
integral part of improving the quality of public service and a common goal
shared by the IPCC, the public and the Police under the two-tier police
complaints system.

To achieve this goal, the IPCC makes timely and practical
recommendations to the Police pursuant to section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO
whenever it identifies any areas of improvement in Police practices or
procedures while vetting Reportable Complaint investigation reports. With
a view to enhancing Police’s service quality, the IPCC will monitor the
implementation status of these improvement-related matters by the
Police via the “Service Quality Improvement Initiatives” mechanism and
quarterly Joint Meetings with CAPO.

Through the stringent case examination process and data analysis over
the past 12 years, the IPCC has identified areas of improvement in Police
services and made more than 180 recommendations to the Police on
issues including training, upgrading equipment, and amending
procedures or guidelines. In 2020/21, the Council made a total of 22
recommendations. These recommendations were not only related to the
complaint cases and the enhancement of Police’s service quality, but also
closely linked to the daily life of members of the public, including:

1. Enhancing Traffic Procedures Manual to advise owners to collect their
vehicles after vehicle examinations

2. Devising a register to record receipt of Traffic Accident Victims
Assistance Scheme (TAVAS) application forms

3. Devising procedures related to the seizure of essential clothing from
arrested persons

4. Enhancing Police procedures on handling seized properties with the
use of Tamper Evident Property Envelopes

5. Devising comprehensive procedures to ensure that proper actions will
be taken upon conclusion of court cases
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HHERTE
BEHRNTRZE
Identify any deficiency
in Police practices

w/

BIZRAERS
Review
investigation reports
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In addition, during the reporting period, the IPCC published its Thematic
Study Report (Report) on the public order events in 2019 and put forward
a total of 52 recommendations for improvement regarding the Police’s
work in five areas. These recommendations were intended to assist the
Police in improving various aspects of service quality. The IPCC has been
closely following up the implementation progress and conducting on-site
visits s0 as to gain a more thorough understanding of the concerns and
challenges faced by frontline officers while implementing the
improvement measures.

Below are examples of improvement recommendations illustrated by
related complaint cases.

RAEEBRBER
Enhance Police’s
service quality

RUENEES
Make
recommendations
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Recommended Improvements

1. Enhancing Traffic Procedures Manual to advise owners
to collect their vehicles after vehicle examinations

Driving a defective vehicle can result in traffic accidents. Therefore, it is in
the public interest that vehicles on the road are free of defects. As part of
traffic enforcement, the Police may issue a Vehicle Examination Notice
(Pol. 566) to require any vehicle with signs of malfunction to undergo a
thorough vehicle examination in accordance with the Road Traffic
Ordinance (Cap. 374).

In a complaint case involving the issuance of a Pol. 566, the Complainant
(COM) was cycling on a road when he was intercepted by a Sergeant
(SGT), who suspected that COM’s bicycle was unroadworthy. The SGT
issued a Pol. 566 to COM, and his bicycle was then taken to a Vehicle
Examination Centre (VEC)/Vehicle Pound for examination. Dissatisfied
with the Police’s action and the subsequent examination of his bicycle,
COM lodged a complaint with CAPO. In this case, COM complained that
according to the information on the Pol. 566, an impounded vehicle may
be detained for examination at the VEC for not more than 72 hours. As per
Police records, the examination was completed within 72 hours. However,
COM complained that he did not collect his bicycle until after 76 hours as
the Police had failed to immediately inform him upon completion of
examination of his bicycle. CAPO’s investigation revealed that it was
uncertain whether the responsible officers had properly told COM about
the procedures for retrieving the impounded vehicle, and whether COM
was informed by the Police to collect his bicycle within 72 hours. The
allegation was therefore classified as “Unsubstantiated”.

In examining the complaint, the IPCC noticed that according to the current
practice, the Police were not required to inform owners/drivers to collect
their vehicles once examination was completed. It was the responsibility
of the vehicle owners/drivers to take the initiative to contact the Duty
Officer (DO) of the VEC in order to retrieve their vehicles. However, there
was no guideline on whom to contact for vehicle collection and how. The
IPCC was of the view that when a police officer executed his duty to tow
away a vehicle for examination, one would normally expect that the police
officer would have the duty to follow up regarding the return of the vehicle
after the examination. From the perspectives of complaint prevention and
service quality improvement, the IPCC recommended the Police to devise
procedures for officers to notify vehicle owners regarding collection of
vehicles upon completion of examination.



ELERWEZEERER  1E5TPol 566
AN FRrA BB AR B O B th ik Ko BB RE SR AS
DMER > ViR BEEMBEER > UE
BE@mini R ONERE AR BT R IRER
% @AETECIEH - BILFERE > (i@
RFFM) IRELIERT - EREHEERR O
WEAEREMTHRIERE  EYBAT
AIER TS REEEE - KET0E5I
AABEBASRITRBRIRHE B
B LREAREEEERTHREREAES
BRIROER REEEREEREESHN
1780 ) URABRIEFBIERAVEERER -

=% Chapter3 | PREERKZEZ Service Quality Improvement Initiatives

The Police accepted IPCC's recommendation, and revised the Pol. 566 by
including the addresses and telephone numbers of all VECs for enquiry
purposes. The contact number of the vehicle owner is also recorded in the
revised Pol. 566, so that the DO of the VEC can contact vehicle owners
regarding collection of their vehicles after examination. Also, the Traffic
Procedures Manual (TPM) was amended to require the DO of the VEC to
contact vehicle owners as soon as practicable upon conclusion of vehicle
examinations. The revised guidelines provide clearer instructions to
frontline officers when carrying out their duties, and ensure that vehicle
owners can collect their vehicles after examination in a timely manner.
The IPCC will continue to follow up the actions taken by the Police and the
implementation of the enhanced procedures.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21
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2. Devising a register to record receipt of Traffic Accident
Victims Assistance Scheme (TAVAS) application forms

According to Police information?, there were 15,298 traffic accidents
involving casualties in 2020. To provide speedy financial assistance to
traffic accident victims or their families, the Government established the
Traffic Accident Victims Assistance Scheme (TAVAS) under the Traffic
Accident Victims (Assistance Fund) Ordinance (Cap. 229). The TAVAS is
administered by the Social Welfare Department (SWD). In order for an
accident victim to be eligible to make a claim, the accident must be a
“road traffic accident” as defined in the Road Traffic Ordinance (Cap. 374)
(RTO), and must have been reported to the Police. The police officer who
investigates the accident will normally inform the victim or his/her family
of the scheme at the earliest opportunity. Applications are considered to
have been formally made only when they are received by the SWD. The
SWD will then forward the TAVAS application form to the Police for
completion of traffic accident details for SWD’s follow-up.

In a complaint case, the Complainant (COM), who sustained an injury in a
traffic accident, made a report to the Police. The accident was investigated
by a Senior Police Constable (SPC). COM later applied for assistance
under TAVAS and submitted an application form to the SWD, which was
then forwarded to the SPC to fill in details of the accident. As COM had not
received any update regarding his application after a few months, he
made an enquiry with the SWD. A member of the SWD staff told COM that
while the form had been forwarded to the Police, the SWD had not
received the necessary information for further processing. COM then
contacted the SPC for an explanation. The SPC, however, denied having
received the form from the SWD. Subsequently, the SWD re-faxed COM’s
application form to the Police. This time, the SPC confirmed receipt of the
re-faxed form and followed up accordingly. COM was dissatisfied that the
SPC had failed to properly handle his TAVAS application form, and lodged
a complaint.

Initially, CAPO classified the allegation as “Unsubstantiated” as there was
no record showing that the SPC had received the application form on the
first occasion but had not handled it. Moreover, the SPC had duly
completed the re-faxed form and returned it to the SWD for processing.

Upon review of CAPO’s investigation, the IPCC noticed that the SPC had
wrongly indicated in COM’s application form that the accident was not a
“road traffic accident” under the RTO. Therefore, the allegation should be
considered “Substantiated”. CAPO subscribed to the IPCCs view and
re-classified the finding as “Substantiated”.

1 https://www.police.gov.hk/ppp_en/05_traffic_matters/rs.html

BUEREHRERHFZEG | 2020/21 TIFRE
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In examining this case, the IPCC observed that there was no mechanism
to ensure the proper transmission of the TAVAS application form via fax
between the Police and the SWD. The absence of a proper communication
channel to ensure that the documents are properly transmitted and
received might lead to mishandling, and defeat the purpose of providing
timely financial assistance to traffic accident victims or their families.

To ensure the timely handling of TAVAS applications and to enhance
communication between the Police and the SWD in future, the IPCC
recommended that the Police should maintain a proper register or an
effective communication channel with the SWD to ensure all facsimile
transmissions of TAVAS application forms are properly processed. The
Police accepted the IPCC's recommendation, and liaised with the SWD to
enhance the handling procedures. The IPCC will continue to follow up the
actions taken by the Police and the implementation of the enhanced
procedures.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21
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3. Devising procedures related to the seizure of essential
clothing from arrested persons

From time to time, police officers seize clothing — including items of
essential clothing such as upper garment, trousers, etc. from arrested
persons, in order to preserve evidence in the course of crime investigation.
Although the existing Police guidelines require police officers to make
attempts to obtain replacement clothing for the arrested person, the IPCC
has observed that there are neither specific guidelines on actions to be
taken after seizure of the arrested person’s essential clothing, nor any
stipulated requirement to provide suitable replacement clothing. This
could give rise to complaints against police officers.

In a complaint case, the Complainant’s (COM) father was arrested for
“Possession of a Dangerous Drug (PDD)” after dangerous drugs were
found in a pocket of his trousers. At the Police Station, a Station Sergeant
(SSGT), who was the Duty Officer and the Case Officer of the PDD case,
gave instructions to seize the trousers of COM’s father as an exhibit, and
gave COM’s father a pair of shorts (which the SSGT personally owned) to
wear as a replacement. On the following day, COM brought some clothes
(i.e. a jacket, a shirt and a pair of jeans) for her father, but a Police
Constable (PC) only accepted the jacket without seeking instructions from
the SSGT, and failed to explain why he did not accept the shirt and the
pair of jeans from COM. COM’s father was later charged with the same
offence and detained until he was taken to the court. In the courtroom,
COM noticed that her father was not wearing the jacket. COM’s father was
then released on court bail. Later that same day, COM’s father felt sick
and was admitted to hospital. Two days later, COM’s father passed away
due to pneumonia. COM opined that her father's death might have been
caused by the Police’s failure to provide adequate clothing to her father
during his detention in the Police Station. In particular, COM was
dissatisfied that the PC had refused to receive the shirt and the pair of
jeans COM brought to her father without explanation, and did not seek
advice from the Case Officer.

The allegation was classified as “Substantiated”, as the PC had neglected
his duty to follow the stipulated procedures to seek advice from the Case
Officer before deciding whether to accept COM’s request for providing
extra clothing to her father.

Moreover, CAPO registered an additional count of “Substantiated Other
Than Reported” against the SSGT. When seizing the trousers of COM’s
father as an exhibit for the DD found in the pocket of his trousers, the
SSGT should also consider the necessary follow-up arrangements — for
example, whether equivalent replacement clothing could be provided by
the Police; whether the Police could arrange for a relative of the arrested
person to provide equivalent clothing to him; or whether taking photos of
the trousers would suffice instead of seizing the trousers if no appropriate
replacement was available. Obviously, the SSGT provided his own shorts
to COM’s father after seizing the latter’s trousers without making any effort
to provide equivalent clothing, which was inappropriate.
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The IPCC was of the view that this case amply demonstrated the need for
specific guidelines on follow-up actions to be taken after seizure of an
arrested person’s essential clothing.

From a complaint prevention perspective, the IPCC considered that it was
necessary for the Police to review the existing measures, and
recommended the Police to devise guidelines and procedures to address
the following issues:

() What officers should do when essential clothing is seized from an
arrested person;

(i) Who should be notified and who should be responsible for making the
decision to seize clothes; and

(i) The arrangements to provide suitable replacement for essential
clothing to the arrested person.

In addition, the IPCC asked the Police to consider additional measures to
assist frontline officers when dealing with unexpected situations, such as
when the arrested person has no friend or family member to bring
clothing, or when the seizure takes place after commercial business
hours, as well as the feasibility of keeping some spare clothing in Police
Stations for exigencies. The Police accepted the IPCC's recommendation
and agreed to review and make necessary amendments to the current
guidelines and procedures. The IPCC will continue to follow up the actions
taken by the Police and the implementation of the enhanced guidelines
and procedures.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21
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4. Enhancing Police procedures on handling seized
properties with the use of Tamper Evident Property
Envelopes

It is common that in the course of criminal investigation and handling of
reports, police officers may seize properties from informants/suspects as
exhibits, and place them intact inside Tamper Evident Property Envelopes
(TEPEs). From time to time, complaints against officers have arisen from
their handling of properties kept inside TEPEs. A set of stringent property
handling procedures is essential for the safekeeping of exhibits by the
Police.

During the reporting period, there was a complaint case in which the
Complainant (COM) was arrested and taken to a Police Station for
detention, during which a Police Constable (PC) conducted a custody
search on COM. After the search was completed, the PC itemised COM’s
personal properties and put them into separate TEPEs for Police custody.
The property packing process was repeatedly interrupted when COM
asked to go to the restroom. Thereafter the crime officer took COM to
another room for laying the charge. COM later found that some of her
personal properties were missing, and thus lodged a complaint against
the handling officers.

CAPQO’s investigation revealed that the searching officer, witnessing
officer, recording officer and the Duty Officer had failed to properly record
the quantities of some properties and perform the checking. As a result,
CAPO registered three counts of “Substantiated Other Than Reported”
against these four officers. Moreover, the process of packing COM’s
properties was repeatedly interrupted. The IPCC considered that a
detained person should not be taken into and out of the interview room in
the course of packing process. This should only take place when the
process of seizing, packing and recording property had been completed.
The repeated interruptions during the process of packing COM’s
properties could cause errors and complaints.

In another complaint case, when COM collected the intestate properties of
her deceased son from the Police, including a mobile phone which was
supposedly kept in a sealed TEPE, an Assistant Clerical Officer (ACO)
working in the Property Office had prematurely unsealed the TEPE before
he went to the interview room to meet COM. As COM later found that all
the emails and messages with her son were missing from the mobile
phone, she suspected that the Police had deleted some contents from the
mobile phone, and lodged a complaint against the Police.
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CAPQO’s investigation revealed that there was no evidence showing that
the Police had tampered with the mobile phone before returning it to
COM. As the purpose of using the TEPE was to keep the items intact, it had
been the ongoing Police practice to open the TEPE in the presence of the
owner/claimant in order to preserve the items’ integrity and to avoid any
argument, misunderstanding or complaint. Nevertheless, the ACO had
unsealed the TEPE containing the mobile phone of COM’s deceased son
after he collected the TEPE from the Property Office, before meeting COM
in the interview room to return the property to her. After investigation,
CAPO classified the allegation against the ACO for prematurely unsealing
the TEPE before COM as “Substantiated”.

In examining this complaint case, the IPCC observed that there was no
written guideline requiring police officers to open a TEPE in the presence
of the property owner/claimant.

Having reviewed the above complaints, the IPCC was of the view that it
was necessary to conduct a holistic review of Police procedures regarding
the handling of seized properties with the use of TEPEs, in particular:

(i) Toavoid interruption during the recording and packing process;

(i) To ensure properties kept in TEPEs are properly handled or stored in a
secure location; and

(i) To require officers to unseal a TEPE in the presence of the arrested
person/owner/claimant.

In addition, the IPCC recommended that CAPO should take appropriate
measures to enhance frontline officers’ awareness when handling seized
properties by using TEPE. CAPO agreed to the IPCC’s recommendations,
and commenced reviewing the current guidelines and procedures
regarding the handling of exhibits with the use of TEPEs. For the purpose
of complaint prevention, CAPO undertook to conduct Outreach Programs
or trainings for frontline officers to enhance their awareness of proper
procedures for handling seized properties with the use of TEPE. The IPCC
will continue to follow up the actions taken by the Police and the
implementation of the enhanced procedures.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21
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5. Devising comprehensive procedures to ensure that
proper actions will be taken upon conclusion of court
cases

During the reporting period, a number of complaints were received
concerning the failure of police officers to take necessary actions after the
conclusion of crime cases. As a result, Complainants (COMs) were
adversely affected or inconvenienced. Apart from the negligence of the
involved officers, the associated Police procedures were also found to be
insufficient for ensuring case closing action would be properly conducted.

In a complaint case, COM was charged with “Making Child Pornography”
and “Indecent Assault”. COM’s desktop computer, which contained
evidence of the offences, was seized and tendered as a case exhibit in
court. During the trial, COM requested to retrieve the client information of
his company, which was unrelated to the crime case, from the computer.
The court agreed, and the then Case Officer recorded this instruction on
file. COM was convicted and sentenced to 34 months’ imprisonment.
Upon the conclusion of the court case, the succeeding Case Officer, who
was a Woman Inspector, was unaware of the court instruction, and
disposed of the computer during case closing. After release from prison,
COM tried to contact the Police to retrieve the information from the
computer, but was unable to reach the responsible officer. Dissatisfied
with the handling process, COM lodged a complaint with CAPO. During
CAPO’s investigation, CAPO found that the Woman Inspector had
overlooked the court instruction and destroyed the computer. Hence, COM
was unable to retrieve the information as previously allowed by the court.
As a result, CAPO registered one count of “Substantiated Other Than
Reported” against the Woman Inspector.

Having reviewed CAPO’s investigation, the IPCC noted that apart from the
negligence of the Woman Inspector in failing to thoroughly check the case
file, the Police do not have specific guidelines on the steps a Case Officer
should take to ensure that all outstanding actions have been properly
taken before giving instructions on the disposal of case properties. In fact,
the existing procedure only briefly indicates that the disposal of case
properties can take place when approval from the appropriate authority
(such as a court order) has been obtained.

From a complaint prevention perspective, the IPCC recommended the
Police to review related requirements and explore the feasibility of
introducing more detailed procedures. For example, it may be practical
and effective to compile a checklist of necessary actions to be taken prior
to the disposal of case properties.

In another complaint case, COM was arrested for “Theft” and was granted
court bail on the condition that he could not leave Hong Kong. As
instructed by the court, the Police put COM on the “Watch List”,
Subsequently, the Prosecution decided to withdraw the charge against
COM as the victim of the “Theft” case refused to testify as a prosecution
witness. As a result, COM was released unconditionally. Two days later,
when COM was leaving Hong Kong for Macau, he was intercepted by
Immigration Officers and was told that he was not allowed to leave Hong
Kong as he was on the “Watch List”. After clarification with the Police,
COM was released and allowed to leave Hong Kong. The allegation
against the Senior Inspector for failing to remove COM from the “Watch
List” was classified as “Substantiated”.
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In examining the complaint, the IPCC observed that although there are
Police guidelines requiring a Case Officer to remove a subject from the
“Watch List” on instructions made by the court, there is no specific
procedure to ensure that the Case Officer would promptly inform relevant
police unit regarding urgent removal of Subjects from the “Watch List”.
The IPCC considered that it is necessary to review the Police guidelines to
the effect that a Case Officer would take prompt and proper action to
update the “Watch List”.

From a complaint prevention perspective, the IPCC recommended the
Police to devise a check-and-balance mechanism to ensure that the Case
Officer would take immediate action to remove a subject from the “Watch
List” after an instruction has been given by the court, thereby avoiding
unwarranted interception of subjects.

In the above two complaints, the Police accepted the IPCCs
recommendations and agreed to review and enhance the relevant
procedures. In addition, the Force Committee on Complaints Prevention
will disseminate lessons learned from these complaints to frontline
officers. CAPO will also share the complaint cases through its Outreach
Programme and e-Newsletter to remind frontline officers to stay alert and
avoid recurrence of similar complaints. The IPCC will continue to follow up
the actions taken by the Police and the implementation of the enhanced
procedures.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21
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EEERES2IAIEERIERTEE
The IPCC’s Follow-up on Implementation Progress of 52 Recommendations

On 15 May 2020, the IPCC published its Thematic Study Report on the
Public Order Events (POEs) arising from the Fugitive Offenders Bill since
June 2019 and the Police Actions in Response, and put forward 52
recommendations for improvement regarding the Police’s practices and
procedures in relation to POEs.

A Task Force steered by the Secretary for Security has been following up
the recommendations put forward in the Thematic Study Report. The 52
recommendations cover five areas:

e Enhancing dissemination of public information and review of media
relations

Review of guidelines on the use of force

Improvement of arrangements for Temporary Holding Areas (THAS)
Enhancement of Police operational deployment and strategies
Strengthening of the Police’s internal management, coordination and
training

The Task Force directed the Police to set up five sub-groups, each led by a
Senior Assistant Commissioner of Police or Assistant Commissioner of
Police, to focus on and to follow up these five areas of work respectively.
The IPCC has been paying close attention to the work of the Task Force, and
keeping the public informed about the implementation progress of these
recommendations through the open part of Joint Meetings with the Police.

The Task Force submits progress reports to the Chief Executive on a
quarterly basis. Thereafter, the Police report to the IPCC at the Joint
Meetings. As at the Joint Meeting in June 2021, the Police have completed
follow-up actions on 32 recommendations, and made significant progress
in other six recommendations. The Police have rolled out a total of 62
improvement measures covering four major areas:

EEgRESANERBIERER

Implementation Progress of 52 Recommendations

3 mens
Completed

1 z I IHEITH
In Progress

25
Completed
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(as at)une 2021)

HEEISEXRER
Significant Progress

6

52IEE
52 recommendations

BISEXER
Significant Progress

EiTH
In Progress
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(i) Regarding “Public Information Dissemination and

Media Relations”, the improvement measures include:

The Police Public Relations Branch (PPRB) in collaboration with the
Information Services Department reviewed the protocol to institute joint
press conferences with other departments or organisations, so as to
clarify fake news and dispel rumours more efficiently and effectively,
and enhance public understanding of government actions involving
multiple stakeholders.

The PPRB set up a new division and procured a “Social Listening
Service” to help analyse social sentiments on the internet for timely
rebuttal or clarification on misleading or untrue messages on social
media platforms; and produced thematic videos on issues of public
concern to disseminate instant and accurate messages to the public.
The Social Media Live Teams were established to conduct live
broadcast of on-site situation and the Police actions during chaotic
POEs. The manpower of the Force Media Liaison Cadre was increased
to better engage the media on the ground. The Police enhanced the
usage of social media platforms and expanded the existing network to
engage wider community sectors.

A PPRB command post would be set up in major operations to enhance
communication with frontline units and the public. The latest Police
actions at the scenes would be broadcast live to enhance the
transparency of Police work and prevent false allegations.

Collaborating with a public relations consultancy firm, the PPRB
formulated a spokesperson training programme tailor-made for senior
police officers, so as to enhance their communication capability with
the media, and disseminate important information more effectively. The
Police also organised sharing sessions regularly between reporters and
frontline Police officers to facilitate liaison and mutual understanding.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21
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Completed by the Police (8 recommendations in total)
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Review Force Media Relations Strategy to ensure timely
and accurate information for the press on incidents and
staff taking stand-up interviews should be trained to
project an image of care for public safety and impartiality in
law enforcement, including reviewing and enhancing the
training for senior officers in answering media questions at
the scene, giving stand-up briefings, attending press
interviews and press conferences.

MEBEREZNARBESTHAETS
BiEHE > BUBBNIREEEE Z REES) -
BB QA EML &R HRRES o

Review Force Public and Community Relations Strategy in
the light of the widespread use of the internet to turn Police
action into allegations of misconduct in order to stir up
resentment to drive further protest.

RIEREMBEARER  BAHRES R
SRR RIBRAR R

Devise means to enhance communications with the public
on the intention to use force and related precautionary
measures.

HIEFHFE > MEH K BRI ETEHRIATH
ETEINREAREE > WIRAEBRIF
HZERE > UHEFBENERBIEZEN
?ﬁ”ﬁ}ﬁﬁl]%f cEESHE BMBEMFNAR
#HE > BAMHRRIERUERFEENIEF -

Devise means to enhance communications with the public
about enforcement action that the Police have taken or is
taking to increase transparency of Police work and to
prevent unnecessary, unfounded or malicious speculations
and rumours. In this regard, there should be more publicity
and public education on Police procedures and practices
for dealing with missing persons and death in Hong Kong.

HEARERAEZFEENEIADEE > &
RAZSHEAERERTGEREIES - &l
E?‘Fﬂ‘*ﬂ%ﬂf‘%LL&ﬁx&iﬂl&%ﬁ” :8)es
AMABENBEHE > LiBBMHERVIEEF
R B e

Given the increase in the use and popularity of social
media, enhance the ability of the responsible teams in the
Police to monitor the social media and devise procedures
and protocols to deal with public concerns and untrue or
malicious messages promptly and effectively by using the
same media to propagate rebuttal.

W EREITHRMMAELERMGEIM
AEHREHFNPETEEAERR -

Review how to facilitate the work of reporters in a major
operation without causing undue hindrance to Police
enforcement action.

WMANEREARBRENNES > UIRBE
BAE > BIMNERAHMER TERRAARK
RMERRFHEFNER » LUREARD
BREMNHFRRARES -

Review the mechanism for the Police to disseminate
information to the public to enhance transparency, for
instance, Police Public Relations Branch to make timely
announcement and update to the public on the situation
inside Prince Edward Station to ease public concern and
quash speculations or rumours.

B EBREMBPINEEERTEESD
HYHIRE o

Review the protocols for taking the lead to organise press
conferences with other departments or institutions.
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(II),‘i'}t FERFFEEEEAY%HE) 5E > (i) Regarding “Arrangements for Temporary Holding Areas
ahEEHE : (THAs)”, the improvement measures include:

s EFEEMIBGREmERZRRENEN >  « Upon reviewing various sites, the Police identified two suitable police
BREAEMEKEAERIEENMEEES stations as designated THAs in each of the five Land Regions for
ARERFEHPREEEREBREHA handling and detaining arrestees during POEs.

+ o

o EMAF - AEBREHIERSBZEH < The Police deployed additional manpower, streamlined workflow,
IHAEM P R B AR RN R E B R A enhanced computer system with audit trail functions, and installed
EfREREE > REREBZALTHE CCTV cameras at THAs to better safeguard detainees’ rights and
MR AEH o b (R B S ZE R SO 8% A BB B8 welfare and ensure timely and accurate record of information about
ATHEBRER ° detainees.

s EREHIERFERFFEBEEMENAZ  « The Police promulgated a set of internal guidelines on THA operations

155 HERIEGRNEBRENEZERE to facilitate the police stations designated as THAs in formulating
HERAFN L A AR o relevant command and training.

EH BT (H3FELEZHER)

Completed by the Police (3 recommendations in total)

1. EHRRBZERENENRELSE > EHEZA 1L
FER  TERFE > URFREDEHEREX
MER —FERNEERERBA LI RIT
I

As to manning a THA, allocate more manpower resources
to ensure the effective and efficient discharge of the Police
administrative work in handling a large number of arrested
persons (APs) at the same time.

2. BREFMALEEMSHEN GIMMESME 2. Implement enhancements such as sufficient space and

Bk EERBEZEMINENTREN
Rific ERRVEBAEEEBUIINNM S RER
RERR  AMBRERRTERALAEE
B F BRI

facilities with computerised audit trail functions soonest
possible in all police stations. If a place outside a police
station is used as a THA in future, then such THA should
have equivalent facilities as those in police stations.

ERRRERECRERELR > BEEIE
BERAKREHME > REUERTEEES
EEZ NED A B EEL o

Consider identifying less remote sites as THAs in case such
need arises in future. The location should also take into
account the availability of hospitals and ambulance depots
within reasonable distance.
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(i) Regarding “Operation planning and strategy”, the

improvement measures include:

The Police procured about 2,200 water-filled barriers and deployed
them at over 60 locations, to effectively minimise possible clashes at
these premises. The Police would continue to utilise water-filled
barriers in a timely manner to meet the operational needs and
reinforce Police cordon lines.

Various protective equipment was procured and corresponding
training was provided to reinforce protection for frontline officers. New
less-lethal weapons were also procured so that officers could have
more options in the use of force under different circumstances.

The Social Media Communication Section of the PPRB would
disseminate timely information in relation to Police actions during
POEs on social media platforms. Organisers of the POEs would be
required under the “Letter of No Objection” to provide a contact
person and the Police would deploy liaison officers to the site to
ensure effective communication with the organisers. The Police
strengthened training for the Police Tactical Unit on providing the
public with clear guidance regarding escape routes for situations
where tear gas might be used.

The setup of 999 Console was improved to enhance manpower
deployment and the ability in dealing with unexpected circumstances.
By adopting advanced technology, scenario-based practical training,
and the introduction of standard command structure, the Police
enhanced the ability in communication, manpower deployment and
cooperation between Police units when dealing with several POEs
simultaneously.

Contingency plan, guidelines and trainings to police officers were
devised to reduce possible prolonged conflicts with protesters and
protect public infrastructures in high risk areas. Upon Police advice,
structural protection of the LegCo Complex and the Central
Government Offices was strengthened.

A working platform was established to facilitate the cooperation and
communication among the Police Railway District, Mass Transit
Railway Corporation and Fire Services Department for better handling
of incidents that might happen inside MTR stations. Scenario-based
exercises would be conducted inside MTR stations. The element of
“Internal Security” was added to the regular contingency management
training programme to enhance interdepartmental communication and
coordination to handle public disorder.
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Clearly defined the roles and duties of frontline officers in the areas of
collecting, analysing and applying intelligence to enhance their
intelligence handling ability pertinent to POEs. A list of factors to be
taken into account in risk assessment and operational deployment
was devised with a view to enhancing the capability of the existing
intelligence system.

Various risk mitigation measures were reviewed and a security plan
was put in place to protect high-risk targets.

The strategies and tactics to be adopted in large-scale arrests were
reviewed in the context of manpower planning, the deployment of the
Force Media Liaison Cadre, the use of newly introduced less-lethal
weapons when absolutely necessary, and the timely arrangement of
vehicles for arrested persons.

The relevant training programmes were strengthened to enhance
officers’ understanding of the latest strategies and tactics to be
adopted in large-scale arrests.

Completed by the Police (21 recommendations in total)

1. E—EBEELSZLARHBNENETE 1

THIR BEEARABUBERILES > BE
HETIMEUDN - EFRGT EHRH
MiETR > REGEMBEUMRBHEALTRILEE
g > WiHAIITRIRKER R BERAIRY o

When there is an ongoing assembly with Letter of No
Objection, liaise with the assembly organiser to curtail the
assembly when necessary. The Police should give sufficient
time and instructions to the assembly organiser and
participants to curtail the assembly and leave the assembly
location via a viable escape route.

BEMBAESEEGRGM T - UERNEFE
EQEMEMBE -

Deploy liaison officer(s) close to the assembly site to
facilitate instant communication with the assembly
organiser.

WmRECBOBEMEARARERNEE
BTREER6A 12 BERBRNIERK » 1857
HIGE ~ SHEMERZLEB RIS > UIF
2 M h0saR R UL S ~ SHEMERIBIRAVEE
$ o

Review the ability to collect, assess and apply the
intelligence received since 9 June on the early and large
turnout of protesters as well as their violent approach, and
draw reference to enhance the ability to collect, assess and
apply intelligence in the future.

W 6B 12BEMH > EEEBNERIEN
RHEEBREBFEERIEGEGRIENT
HRISAESIFHAE » LU B TREE Z M
&R WG RRERIRITEREAHEZE
Y (BN IE R A RIE) B> BE AKX
RE TR > FINERTREVEH]TE) o

Review the events of 12 June and consider whether the
preparation and subsequent action for defending Central
Government Complex and Legislative Council (LegCo)
Complex could have been adjusted to minimise
confrontation with protesters and should review whether
less confrontational strategies such as prior containment
could be adopted in future operations for protecting public
property such as LegCo Complex.
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Completed by the Police (21 recommendations in total)

Review the ability to mobilise and allocate manpower to
deal with multiple clashes at different spots in a large-scale
POE.

BAMMERKE (KWMKS) - KERES
E BRE - AJMRESHE > BORIR
EHBAEBRBRNTEE ZBHER -

Better utilise water-filled barriers (about 2 metres high)
which are higher and stronger than mills barriers to
reinforce police cordon lines and minimise clashes
between frontline police officers and violent protesters.

WS E S A E KRR A F UR R IEEE
RERTEENHIFES] ©

Review the Police ability to mobilise and allocate
manpower to deal with several major POEs simultaneously.

B EDERNITEE I AREF > REF1E
HETEB9EE D (BEREBRAIBEN) » UK
a8 Al tH T Bt & I BR R R B B AR RE B BE D -
BENEBRINTHEARBIRBEEREN
AR o

Review the Police ability for timely assessment (including
ability to collect intelligence) and identification of
potentially risky targets including those of symbolic or
strategic importance to the HKSAR in the light of possible
escalation of violent protests.

st & 75 s E B R FY AE 77 (B3 a8 B Ko 5T A
BTE55R) » WA BI U AITAE AT RER & E B
BRIV REEE

Review the Police ability to assess risk (including
identification and evaluation of potential vulnerability) and
identify risk mitigation of each major potential target.

10.

S EE R E RN B R ERER RS
It > 3t K FE B S T E BRfE A5 o

10.

Review risk mitigation measures identified for each target
at risk and regularly review in the light of changing
circumstances.

11.

B ELZEGEARERNDBMIFSPERE
B 4R B SRBRBLRK ©

11.

Review the strategic effectiveness of setting up cordon
lines inside the LegCo Complex as opposed to outside the
Complex.

12.

He B RINURE > TRSFIEBAR
BE LU DB o

12.

Review the general tactics to lessen confrontation, where
protection of targets at risk are concerned.

13.

W E SR ETWIRIU ENERITER
HWAERRER - RBKRENME > LHERF
WEMBEBER (OEERERERKREM
1RR2) > MBMAISIEBR > (FHEHFREE
MinH > UEAR O EREREHFZER -

13.

Review Police procedures, strategy and manpower
deployment when having to handle two or more major
operations at the same time, particularly in the collection
and collation of timely intelligence (including the
monitoring of social and other media) for sharing and for
better communications and coordination at all levels of the
Force command structure for more effective allocation of
resources on the ground in such situations.

14.

W7 B2l KR7 B22H %R KREEHM
EHEEBL RGN -

14.

Review the strategy and manpower deployment on the
night of 21 July and in the early hours of 22 July for lessons
to be learnt.
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Completed by the Police (21 recommendations in total)

Review and rectify the deficiency in the Police 999 Console
to cope with extreme stress such as that encountered on
the night of 21 July to see what remedial measures are
required.

16.

WS I AE 3 R BT RA SR A AR B B R st B
TR ERFAEES B EEER - EHRET
TS M BVAERE > 1EFIRENBIEGEI K £
By o

Review localities likely to have continuing risks of
confrontation such as those encountered in Yuen Long and
prepare contingency plans for dealing with such
confrontation, bearing in mind the issues encountered in
Yuen Long on 21 July, the lessons learnt, and the
recommendations above.

17.

BBEEERIBTEZE ATHEFHR
N BORERAREEFHEMRITE S
LHEHBEH NS T BEELFFFrREXBI SR BE
BHE RS

17.

Review the operational plans for occasion of POEs
involving breach of peace and violent acts of protesters, in
particular the strategies, gear and weapons for officers to
quell disorder.

18.

BN EAERARNBAETREENHIET
B RES ©

18.

Review Police strategy on taking enforcement action that
involves making a large number of individual arrests with
the use of force.

19.

BREDEBHIEANA S EBERIGFTERE
HUAITEIRIRES o

19.

Review Police strategy on taking enforcement action inside
MTR stations or premises crowded with people.

20.

% 77 PO R B LA R PIE AR T B R
B TIE » RS RABBHAAL > L4
ERFAISEEE > UEEREENHET
ff o

20.

Review the coordination among Police themselves and
with other departments in major operations, especially
where closure of entrances to premises is involved, and
devise procedures and clarify the chain of command to
facilitate efficient communication and coordination work.

21.

B

MRIEGREFATNENEE - UIMNREIE
RERFRBHRIBA LRI ZHNAFE
E R LFREE R BRI EMIZER
HEHM  UHFRERMABR: (DMERZE
B UKk QEEERBALHERNZ6 5 18
PREMZNE IS BEBREERE
maasEsl « AFAREC KBk o

FEAER (H1BMEBEEH)

BREREREEBERENSE N > SiEE
REBERAM S EE ARG - ERE
BIEE R ES PO EF R EB A B Z R
ANEDHEETEIREURSEALTZEN
BE - RERBESHE > URSRITHE
ERIE A REBIBIEEN o

21.

Review riot control manpower requirements with a view to
strengthening the logistical and manpower deployments to
deal with arrested persons (APs) during large-scale POEs.
This review should consider whether current guidance is
sufficiently clear to ensure the attainment of the dual
objectives of maintaining law and order and bringing
offenders to justice while respecting their rights. This
review should also consider whether the Police Force need
augmentation in training, manpower and technology.

With significant progress (1 recommendation in total)

1.

Review the use of tear gas during the CITIC Tower Incident,
including assessment before and during its continuing use,
the coordination among Headquarters Command and
Control Centre and with frontline officers, the communication
between the Police and the assembly organiser and
participants, the accessibility of an escape route and the
possibility of alternative tactics for future deployment.
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ERFEXER (H5BLEEAER)

1.

BAMAEENERESASERNERR 1.
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(ivyRegarding “Internal Management, Coordination and

Training”, the improvement measures include:

Training programmes were formulated to enhance coordination
among teams and help officers make sound judgment on the use of
irritant agent devices and less-lethal weapons during dispersal
actions. A “Simulated Interactive Multi-media System” training
was developed for the Police Tactical Unit to assess and strengthen
the commanders’ ability in the deployment and application of
tactics.

A series of scenario-based exercises simulating different situations of
public disorder were devised, in particular, trainings simulating urban
settings, MTR stations, and indoor areas were added to strengthen
officers’ capability to evaluate environmental factors while using force
and applying tactics.

During the Regional Response Contingents Field Day exercise, cross-
contingent training was introduced so as to strengthen their
coordination and their use of force.

With significant progress (5 recommendations in total)

Review how best to ensure individual officers strictly follow
the guidelines on the use of force, including revising the
training regime for meeting situations similar to recent
events.

HEEDRAHBLEESREANBRZNED
EERERBEEMNBRENRSE > ST H
REERITE AR A AER R E R - RIS
A maasBEERH AR Z BHA o

To minimise the possible risk during dispersal action,
review how to enhance coordination among different
teams if the Police consider it necessary to use irritant
agent devices and less-lethal weapons when and where an
assembly is ongoing with a large number of participants.

BEREBABMRA MERE - SAHEESR
5Y 28 80 HL 1t B 28 FE AR RV 1B 1R 4 A 15 31 -
BREEHEMEFAEREREEEHR I
FRiETE -

Devise scenario-based practical training for officers on the
use of tear gas, pepper ball launchers and other police
weapons, including periodic accreditation of officers on the
use of force in handling protests.

HEBEAENEIN > INREHZAEBERE
W EIRES > REREAREEEERN
MR > LHEEBHUEARAERBRENE
MELE o

Devise scenario-based exercises in the training of officers
on tactics to be used in handling POEs in different urban
settings, in particular MTR stations and enclosed-areas
with many people.

magt STERRMRG ~ 1551 A HFH > =B
EHAEMRRA LTSI EBMAIET o

Strengthen and refine the relevant protocols, guidelines
and training manuals for clearer advice to officers and the
public.
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=% Chapter3 | PREERKZEZ Service Quality Improvement Initiatives

In monitoring the implementation progress of the improvement
recommendations in relation to THA, the then IPCC Chairman and
Members conducted a site visit to the THA at Hung Hom Police Station to
understand the improvement measures on 4 February 2021. IPCC
Chairman and Members also visited the Regional Command and Control
Centre (Hong Kong Island Regional Headquarters) on 17 June 2021 and
was briefed on the latest operation of 999 Console after improvement
measures had been put in place in response to the recommendations put
forward in the Thematic Study Report.

Due to the complexity of the issues involved and the need to adopt a
holistic approach to operation, the Police require more time and further
study regarding the recommendations on the use of force. The Police will
actively follow up the recommendations, and will draw reference from
international practices and experience in the course of conducting review
and study to analyse feasible plans and determine whether they are
applicable to local situations.

The IPCC will continue to follow up with the Police on the implementation

progress of the remaining recommendations and the latest development
through the prevailing mechanism.
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The IPCC has been actively reviewing its role and duties, and reflecting on
the tripartite relationship between the IPCC, the Police and the public. The
IPCC believes that enhancement of mutual trust and communication
among the three parties is of paramount importance to reinforcing a fair
and impartial police complaints system. Therefore, the IPCC takes the
initiative to engage with various stakeholders through an array of
channels in order to better discharge its statutory function of promoting
public awareness of the role of the Council under section 8(1)(e) of the
IPCC Ordinance.

Meanwhile, the IPCC also continues to disseminate the latest information
through the established communication channels, including corporate
publications, IPCC website and IPCC official YouTube Channel, so as to
enhance public understanding of the Council’s work and the two-tier
police complaints system.

Stakeholder Engagement

BRE=E

School Programme

ATMASTSVERZLEENTH > 58
2016 F 11 BB BREE > BiBAE
AR « REM/NEREE N EEEE
GREERAEAE -

BEHR EHESHARELERER > @IE
EEBRECR EFRER Kk MCRBE
BRI SRIENBLERR > BEDERH
Mt B FNEBEEZE > ML RA R DM
BEETEHNIF BEURFATHREN
RAIMER > Uk MERBRFERGE
EPER

HABRSHANE D BREHRE S B
M EER BB HROE TIEMERAE
B LT B2HEMEREMARRI -
IR EEE - BEERDENE
HEFELRHET BEENARTHFERS
ERBEBRFER > MAARR o KM
BREENMFBENDEES
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To enhance the youth’s understanding of the IPCC, the Council has been
reaching out through its School Programme since November 2016 to
introduce the statutory functions and role of the IPCC to teachers and
students from local tertiary institutions as well as secondary and primary
schools.

During the reporting period, the IPCC visited post-secondary institutions
and gave lectures to students studying Diploma Yi Jin courses of “Police
Force Practice” and “Disciplinary Force Practice”, etc. Through sharing the
latest complaint statistics and real cases, teachers and students were
given an insight into the work of the IPCC, the principles of and
procedures for vetting complaint investigation reports, and the operation
of the two-tier police complaints system.

Though some lectures had been changed to online format to align with
the Government’s epidemic prevention and control measures against
COVID-19, all sessions were well received by the attendees. Teachers and
students were particularly interested in learning more about the nature of
allegations, classification of investigation results and the Observers
Scheme. The IPCC representatives also guided students through the
process of examining real complaint cases with the aim of fostering
critical thinking and analytical skills.



RE 58 B H#E B UARITE R RN E R IR S

B g RERENFABESFEAT

ﬁj@ﬁkﬁzﬁéﬁi C RIE -~ BENZROEE >
WERE DRI ABEEE o

REMERAEEALIFPEHESR > MRE
ORTERER ) R4 EE R ES  RIZMEBLER -
Mr Richard Yu (the then Secretary-General) visited
Caritas Institute of Community Education to give a
lecture to students studying Diploma Yi Jin courses of
“Police Force Practice” and “Disciplinary Force Practice”.

EEFWER (1T8) AW RLTIFEEZITABRHELET 2R M
RIESOR £ RENSLEHER -

Ms Regina Lau (Deputy Secretary-General (Operations) (Atg)) visited the
School of Continuing Education of Hong Kong Baptist University to give a
lecture to students studying Diploma Yi Jin course of “Policing Studies”.

S8PUE Chapter4 | B IE Communications

The School Programme has seen active participation by teachers and
students throughout the years. It is hoped that the School Programme will
allow the younger generation to gain a better understanding of the IPCC’s
core values, namely independence, impartiality and integrity, as well as
the rights and responsibilities of Complainants.
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Engaging with the Police
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ERMEHAENAERKS > A HES
HEFNTEZE > TMESFHAER
oAt ZEEALBRERZEFIM
BRENARREEE  TRAKREHFA
ERENTHBERABINSERBR UKk
ELERARBERSENEE -

EEERTHERETREENZRESHZ

Sh EFRATRESSREFEMAE > I

NFERREMN UERYREESM

Eﬁ%@%%%?ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬂ’%ﬁﬁﬂ&%
EEREIER -

CHR
mlE

SNEFEFANZEENT ¢
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BEEEHEHRMAN 2019 F 6 BE(RIBFEFNETE
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ELENERMO2EREZ > TRNAREFASN

BERo

After the publication of the IPCC “Thematic Study
Report on the Public Order Events arising from the
Fugitive Offenders Bill since June 2019 and the Police
Actions in Response”, a meeting with the four Police
Staff Associations was held to elucidate IPCC's
observations as well as its 52 recommendations to
the Police and to listen to the views of frontline police

officers.
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The main statutory functions of the IPCC are to monitor the Police’s
handling of Reportable Complaints against police officers, identify any
deficiency which might lead to complaints, and make recommendations
for improvement to the Force. It is therefore essential for the Council to
maintain communication with representatives from different departments
and levels of the Force to gain a better understanding of various situations
encountered by frontline officers as well as the Police’s plans for
enhancing service quality.

In addition to regular engagement activities, the IPCC has organised with
the Police a number of on-site observations and visits to various Police
units during the vyear in order to closely follow up the Force’s
implementation progress of the 52 recommendations put forward in the
IPCC’s Thematic Study Report.

The engagement activities between the IPCC and the Police during the
year are listed as follows:
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l 2021.02.04

——

REETFEREARBLEICREZERMERAREES
REERREEMER LT  MERR (REER) GE
REURKBHFERRARNERT » SEEEROVAH
CERFERRM > FETRENERERAFN
RAREN AR ERREARBER -

Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (the then Chairman) led a
delegation of 16 Members and representatives from the
Secretariat to visit the enhanced temporary holding area
at Hung Hom Police Station. Accompanied by Ms
Rebecca Lam Hiu-tong, Director of Management Services
of Hong Kong Police Force, Ms Anna Tsang Yim-sheung,
Assistant Commissioner of Police (Service Quality) and
CAPO representatives, the IPCC delegation examined the
enhanced facilities and gained a more thorough
understanding of enhancements made to resources
deployment and systems for improving service quality of
the Force.

0 B s )

e Quality Wing
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Liaison with other organisations

2020.06.12

ELSRAFREZENE E@EIRstE 0128 At
AREE AN BEENMERBRFERKIEU
REHGEEERE - AREMELHITFIARRE > It
HELRAREEERLEMEHNESHRTEE -

The IPCC received a delegation of 12 Mainland legal
officials from the Common Law Training Scheme
organised by the Department of Justice. During the
meeting, the two-tier police complaints system in Hong
Kong as well as the statutory functions of the Council
were presented to the delegates. The delegates also
exchanged views on the Council’'s work and expressed
their appreciation of the Council’s efforts in conducting
the Thematic Study.

2020.10.20

REWMSERABEEAEHFEEEHSLEEHTEE
MHEREMBEEGRAERAEKRERES S > I &
BEHETEESHEIFNEN -

At the meeting with Hong Kong Federation of Education
Workers, Mr Richard Yu (the then Secretary-General)
introduced the statutory functions of the IPCC as well as
its School Programme, and explained to the attendees
the objectives of the Thematic Study.

2020.11.26

EEKERAEZEGIFERBREEMBUEELK
ERBAREAAREEERTEERBLNME > Wi
EEBRE  BRBREENBTEETNABREEH
BB WE—FRHEMMERBRFERHEIAETR

Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman of Publicity and
Survey Committee) was invited by “Rotary Club of Star
Avenue” and “Rotary Satellite Club of Star Avenue —
Inspiration” to be the guest speaker at their regular
meeting. Mr Chan introduced the role and statutory
functions of the IPCC and exchanged views with club
members on the two-tier police complaints system.
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2021.03.05

EEKERAEZETIEMBREERZENER
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Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman of Publicity and
Survey Committee) and Mr Daniel Mui (Acting Secretary-
General) attended Central and Western District Fight
Crime Committee meeting. They introduced the work of
the IPCC and exchanged views with the attending
members on the two-tier police complaints system.

2021.03.27

BEEEEMERFEET IR —HEATKEEEMRKRY
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The IPCC was invited by the Hong Kong United Youth
Association to host a session of Youth Leadership
Training Programme tailor-made for their young
members. During the webinar, Mr Daniel Mui (Acting
Secretary-General) introduced the role and statutory
functions of the IPCC and exchanged views with the
members on the two-tier police complaints system.

S8PUE Chapter4 | B IE Communications
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The IPCC held four Joint Meetings with CAPO in 2020/21. Complaint
matters of public concern and key issues relating to enhancement of the
Force’s service quality were discussed in the open session of the
meetings.

® 2020.06.16
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The Force gave a presentation on the handling procedures of death
enquiry and missing persons, and provided an update on the progress of
follow-up work on the 52 recommendations put forward by the IPCC in the
Thematic Study Report.

The Force gave a presentation on resilience training for police officers, and
updated the Council on the implementation progress of the 52
recommendations put forward by the IPCC in the Thematic Study Report.

The Force gave a presentation on digital video recording devices of Hong
Kong Police, and updated the Council on the implementation progress of
the 52 recommendations put forward by the IPCC in the Thematic Study
Report.

The Force gave a presentation on dissemination of information to the
public, and updated the Council on the implementation progress of the
52 recommendations put forward by the IPCC in the Thematic Study
Report.
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Engaging with the media

WEHR > BET—HBITTARGEEE  During the reporting period, the IPCC held six media events, including
B SIEMEEAEREETIEY > @@ press conferences and media workshop. In addition to updating the
ERAZRBRLESMELEEEERRST  media and the public on the Police’s implementation progress of the 52
SOIEERZENEABEE ) 2EEARMBPIT  recommendations put forward by the IPCC in the Thematic Study Report,
E > I [o] E(RIRIRR o the Council also shared its latest work and addressed media enquiries.

®m 2020.05.15

BEEERRMIN2019F 6 ARR(RIEBINVETERES|
ENARBEARETHREANESITHNEEERERS -
REXFEREMBLUAEREEEZESEREERE
WERABEEAEMFIRMNER (178 BERLEN
ERTRTREEFE > AAREEBREAES °

The IPCC published its “Thematic Study Report on the
Public Order Events arising from the Fugitive Offenders
Bill since June 2019 and the Police Actions in Response”
(the Report). Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (the then IPCC
Chairman) and members of the Task Force Steering
Group, accompanied by Mr Richard Yu (the then
Secretary-General) and Mr Daniel Mui (the then Deputy
Secretary-General ~ (Operations)), hosted a press
conference for publication of the Report and elaborated
on details of the Report to the public.

m 2020.06.16

REXFEREMBIERIRTFEHERZES - KEE
FREFBNLZEGEFEFRERE - EEAERBAE
ZEGTERBRACEMNRINERMNE BLENED
TERER MENGEETEEFTRRENER » UK
ATMARBERFRESTENRTIRFHRSHT -

Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (the then Chairman),
accompanied by Hon Tony Tse Wai-chuen (the then Vice-
Chairman), Mr Herman Hui Chung-shing (the then
Chairman of Operations Advisory Committee), Mr
Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman of Publicity and
Survey Committee), and Mr Richard Yu (the then
Secretary-General), met with the media to address
enquiries about IPCC’s Thematic Study Report and
provided the latest complaint statistics arising from
Public Order Events.
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Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (the then Chairman),
accompanied by Hon Tony Tse Wai-chuen, (the then
Vice-Chairman), Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman
of Publicity and Survey Committee), and Mr Richard Yu
(the then Secretary-General), met with the media to share
the latest complaint statistics arising from Public Order
Events, the vetting progress of complaint investigation
reports submitted by CAPO, and the Council’s
observations while vetting these cases.

2020.12.15

REXFEREMBIERIREFEHERZES - EF K
ERAEZEETRFMRRAENRENERAE L
EHEETEREHE > @ik 2019/20 TERSE > XA
HARARBHTENRMRFAAHT - RFERR
RXMNATHREEZEE  UREHEBEZIEFNS
TREE -

Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (the then Chairman),
accompanied by Hon Tony Tse Wai-chuen, (the then
Vice-Chairman), Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman
of Publicity and Survey Committee), and Mr Richard Yu
(the then Secretary-General), met with the media to
introduce the 2019/20 Report and share the latest
complaint statistics arising from Public Order Events, the
vetting progress of complaint investigation reports
submitted by CAPO, and the Council’s observations while
vetting these cases.
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2021.03.16
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Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (the then Chairman),
accompanied by Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman
of Publicity and Survey Committee) and Mr Daniel Mui
(Acting Secretary-General), met with the media to
introduce the twenty-seventh issue of /PCC Newsletter.
They also shared the latest complaint statistics arising
from Public Order Events and the vetting progress of
complaint investigation reports submitted by CAPO.

S8PUE Chapter4 | B IE Communications
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Media interviews

BEESTERMAMN2019F 6 BEE(RIEIE  Following publication of its “Thematic Study Report on the Public Order
BIMESTEZSI BN ABATEERAE/AB  Events arising from the Fugitive Offenders Bill since June 2019 and the
EFTHNEEEREKRSE > BEEFE  Police Actions in Response”, Dr Anthony Francis Neoh (the then
RZEMEL - FEIEFHEFERZE UK Chairman), Hon Tony Tse Wai-chuen (the then Vice-Chairman), and Mr
EERERAEZEGEFERIBELLERE  Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman of Publicity and Survey Committee)
ZRAM ~ AR EEEETR” > were interviewed by various local, mainland and international media
BIEBEME -CNBC- m%EE&~FE organisations, including Cable TV News, CNBC, CRHK, HKO1, Now TV,
01 ~Now TV~ EEBESMHELN > LUGE  RTHK and Xinhua News Agency, to promote public understanding of the
RBHEEERRENEEGITIENTH o Thematic Study Report and the work of the IPCC.

LAY
EEE

BRETIEL

Media workshop

BEESRMEE TEY > MERIEAEBE  The IPCC organises media workshops to enhance engagement with the
Mam > WiHBNEETEE THREZERM  media and facilitate reporters’ understanding of the statutory functions
EEBENAR - and role of the IPCC.

L 2021.03.05

ELEELMERIFY  EEAERAETEZEEXRE
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ZHE > ZEFATRERELEDZTERE -

Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman of Publicity and
Survey Committee) and Members Miss Sylvia Lee Hiu-
wah, Mr Johnny Yu Wah-yung, Mrs Helen Yu Lai Ching-
ping and Miss Mabel Chan Mei-bo, accompanied by
Mr Daniel Mui (Acting Secretary-General), hosted a media
workshop to introduce the work of the IPCC and the two-
tier police complaints system to frontline reporters.
Members also shared their experience working at the
Council with the attendees.
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==k
The Council

ELeERB(EE RO RIINIBILE
EWE EFE - DU EFENEZE2EH
THREZIE -HREPRZER/ENT !

ZFFE Chairman

REFHEL > QC>SC» P
Dr Anthony Francis NEOH, QC, SC, JP

& X JE Vice-Chairmen

The IPCC is an independent statutory body established under the IPCCO.
The Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and Members are all appointed by the
Chief Executive. The membership of the IPCC during the reporting period

is as follows:

{EH7 Appointment

2018F6H 1HIE
Since 1 June 2018

{£HA Appointment

REEWEZES » SBS » JP
Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP

HEHRZES > BBS» JP
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP

SEMEEE » SBS 0 P
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP

PRiRIEZE - JP
Hon Ronick CHAN Chun-ying, JP

Rx®m=%E8 »BBS P
Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP

Z &8 Members

RS MEEE (£20205F128)
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman
(Till December 2020)

BERRMERBEG LR (£20205128)
BREZIEERE (£2020%F128)
Serious Complaints Committee Chairman
(Till December 2020)

Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman

(Till December 2020)

BERMEZZEGEE (2021F153#E)
(EE=-2 2\ Edr

Serious Complaints Committee Chairman
(Since January 2021)

Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman

EzREiZVEER (20215 18¢E)
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman
(Since January 2021)

EEEZNMEEE 2021F1818)
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman
(Since January 2021)

2015518 1HE20205F12831H
From 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2020

2015518 1HE202012831H
From 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2020

20191818
Since 1 January 2019

20211818
Since 1 January 2021

202118 1H#E
Since 1 January 2021

BFRER A > SBS o MH 5 JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP

fAa - T326M > BBS » JP
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP

FRERER ST > MH » JP
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu
EEEE R AR
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC
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EEREFEAZEEEE (£2020F128)

Operations Advisory Committee Chairman
(Till December 2020)

EEZEEIRE (£2020812A8)
Management Committee Chairman
(Till December 2020)

EEKERBEEZEEERE
Publicity and Survey Committee Chairman

BIERERFZHZEEERE (2021F181)
Operations Advisory Committee Chairman
(Since January 2021)

EREBHEREEERE (£2020%F108)
Legal Committee Chairman
(Till October 2020)

{THA Appointment

201551818E2020512831H
From 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2020

2015518 1HZE202012831H
From 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2020

2016F68 1HE
Since 1 June 2016

2017%#1818#
Since 1 January 2017

201718 1H#E
Since 1 January 2017



Z 8 Members
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{EHA Appointment

ERBERE
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung

MEHE R AEEM > SBS » P
Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SBS, SC, JP

EpimiEE = > BBS » MH » 0St) » JP
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH,
0st, JP

BBt
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

fEIfREs Tt
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing

Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung

Rk 2T
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen

FrEg+
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

FRIZELEBBS>MH - JP
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

SEa{Ex 1+ > BBS > MH » JP

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP
RKkEL LT

Ms Shalini Shivan SUJANANI

BELHE
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang

PEEB L 0 P
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP
PRERERTE L > SBS» MH » JP

Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS,
MH, JP

EHEE > MH P
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP

‘BALBXL P

Ms Jane Curzon LO, JP
REENL T > SBS

Mrs Helen YU LAl Ching-ping, SBS

BRIEARIEL > MH
Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, MH

MEEZEZ T
Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo

REMSEE > MH > JP
Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP

EELZEEFE (2021F18%)
Management Committee Chairman
(Since January 2021)

FEEHZEEERE (2020F108#E)
Legal Committee Chairman
(Since October 2020)

BB EERE (£2020F128)
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman
(Till December 2020)

BREZIEER (2021F187E)
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman
(Since January 2021)

2018FE6H1HiE
Since 1June 2018

201998 4B
Since 4 September 2019

2015F18B18E2020%F12831H
From 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2020

20171818
Since 1 January 2017

201518 1HE2020512831H
From 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2020

201615 1H#E
Since 1 January 2016

2016F6B 1HiE
Since 1 June 2016

2017%1818#%#
Since 1 January 2017

2017%181H#E
Since 1 January 2017

20171818
Since 1 January 2017

2017%1B18E20205612831H
From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2020

201718 18#%E
Since 1 January 2017

2017%181H#E
Since 1 January 2017

201868 1HE
Since 1 June 2018

201918 1R
Since 1 January 2019

201918 1Hi#E
Since 1 January 2019

201998 4HiE
Since 4 September 2019

20211818
Since 1 January 2021

202118 1H#E
Since 1 January 2021

20211818
Since 1 January 2021
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%%@mﬁ@%ﬁmﬁﬁaﬁ BfHA - 2020 4 BE 2021538
IPCC Members’ Attendance at In-house Meetings rerod apiit 2020 10 March 2021

ELEEEFETABEE > HERZEZES  The IPCC holds in-house meetings every quarter for the full Council to

MEZENAMIFE-WMAFTE > IREE  discuss internal matters. Special in-house meeting would be held when

SRR o necessary.

@ 47 Attended O #:FE Did notattend  N/A RE&#m S Not a Member of the Meeting

ZFE Chairman

REFHEL > QC>SC JP
Dr Anthony Francis NEOH, QC, SC, JP

8IZEFE Vice-Chairmen

RELEZES  SBS 0 JP
Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP

HifE82%8 > BBS 0 JP
Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP ® ® o

SEBEZEES > SBS 5 P
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP O O ®

BRIRSEES » JP
Hon Ronick CHAN Chun-ying, JP N/A N/A N/A

SkxE=%E > BBS s P
Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP N/A N/A N/A

ZE Members

STRERSEE » SBS s MH 5 JP
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP o ® ®

BASA T TH2ET » BBS - JP
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP ® ® o

BRAREESEEE - MH - JP
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP ® ® ®

N e
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

BB RAEM
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

FRBRE
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung

MEBE R AEEM » SBS » JP o o °
Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SBS, SC, JP

EpiRiEE L » BBS » MH » OSt) » JP ® ° °
Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP

* 45B]RF g Special in-house meeting
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E
10888* Total
8 Oct

o [ [ L 7/7
O [ O N/A 4/6
[ [ [ N/A 6/6
[ o L O 4/7
N/A N/A N/A o 1/1
N/A N/A N/A o 1/1
L o [ N/A 6/6
[ [ [ N/A 6/6
L L [ o 7/7
L L L o 7/7
O [ O O 1/7
[ [ [ [ 7/7
o O [ L 4/7
[ O o N/A 5/6
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@ 47 Attended O #RFE Did notattend  N/A RE® A& Not a Member of the Meeting

2020

4A248*

24 Apr
lE]/\,Xs*m,y';grllgr1%-\3:Chor—kwan ¢ ° °
1l\j\jrﬁii‘éc_'}ig;ﬁrdiHO Kam-wing © © N
ﬁifiﬁm Chi-yung ¢ ¢ ¢
ﬁﬁr?{N%lgsiﬁn%WONG Wing-tsuen ¢ ¢ °
ﬁﬁistygl\z/;:LEE Hiu-wah ¢ ° °
. o .
ﬂﬂl\:/\gslgfL ?/\%lifsiz K’ayli)eB ?’A’Nl\él,-lB,BJSP, MH, JP © ¢ v
ﬁﬁiﬁnﬁhivan SUJANANI © © °
ﬁ;ﬁaﬁfwom Chi-sang ¢ ° °
7r!\;\/EZJ_Ir%o;?né:]ﬁyi\(L] wah-yung, JP ¢ ¢ °
Fﬁ%%@#ﬁi > SBS » MI—! ) JP ® o o
Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS, MH, JP
U LEE i bun, M, ° . °
ﬁs} }Jafii:rz’anPLO, JP ¢ © °
?A%rz&ifnﬁuiglsghsing-pmg, SBS ¢ ¢ °
ﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%H’Amghmg-yan, MH N/A N/A b
ﬁi%ﬁbﬁ CHAN Mei-bo N/A WA v
FRIEMEE > MH - P N/A N/A N/A

Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP

* 45B]RF g Special in-house meeting
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L
10888* Total
8 Oct

L L L L 7/7
O O O N/A 0/6
L o L L 7/7
[ [ [ [ 7/7
[ [ [ [ ] 7/7
@) [ [ [ 5/7
L O L O 3/7
L O O N/A 2/6
L L L L 7/7
L L L O 6/7
[ O [ o 6/7
L O L L 6/7
o [ O [ 5/7
L L L L 7/7
N/A N/A N/A [ J 1/1
N/A N/A N/A o 1/1
N/A N/A N/A O 0/1
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IPCC Members’ Attendance at Joint IPCC/CAPO Meetings

ﬂ, Bt G R R RN O i R 40 8%

BFHA 1 2020 4B E 2021534
Period: April 2020 to March 2021

@ H£i7E Attended O #iJE Did notattend  N/A FE2& M E Not a Member of the Meeting

2020
EIE S

9815H 12A15H Total
15 Sep 15 Dec

ZE Chairman

RREFEL - QC 2 SC P

Dr Anthony Francis NEOH, QC, SC, P ® ® L ° 4/4

ElZEFE Vice-Chairmen

REIEZES > SBS 2 P

Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP O i ® N/A 2/3

#H{ERZES > BBS» P

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP o ® ® N/A 3/3

SEEEE > SBS » P

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP i ® [ ° 4/4

BRiREZEE 5 P

Hon Ronick CHAN Chun-ying, JP N/A N/A N/A ® 1/1

BkxE%E8 »BBS P

Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP N/A N/A N/A o 1/1

Z8 Members

SRR AE » SBS o MH 5 JP

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP ¢ i ® N/A 3/3

R34 TA267 > BBS - JP

Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP o ® ] N/A 3/3

PRERESSAE > MH > P

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP i ® [ ° 4/4

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu ® ® ® o 4/4

BB RAEE

Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC O O o o 0/4

ERIGRE

Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung ® L ® e 4/4

MEBE R AEE » SBS » P

Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SBS, SC, JP O ® ® ® 3/4

#p4sEtE+ > BBS > MH » 0St) » JP

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OSt), JP ¢ ® O N/A 2/3

Gh A Ao

BBt ° ° -~ ° -

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

BUEREHRERHFZEG | 2020/21 TIFRE



IR E
Mr Richard HO Kam-wing

Mr Barry CHIN Chi-yung

BBk ERTE

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
FHEELL

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

FRICEE >BBS> MH» JP
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

S 888t > BBS> MH » JP

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP
RkEL+L

Ms Shalini Shivan SUJANANI
BRI

Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang
WREBTE 5 JP

MrJohnny YU Wah-yung, JP

PBREREYSE L > SBS» MH » JP
Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS, MH, JP

FORTE > MH o JP
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP

BIELZLLT )P

Ms Jane Curzon LO, JP
REENEL T > SBS

Mrs Helen YU LAl Ching-ping, SBS

BRIEARIEL > MH
Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, MH

MREBR T
Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo

REMELE > MH» JP
Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP

@ 4i/E Attended

N/A

N/A

N/A

O #&kFE Did not attend

2020

9H15H
15 Sep

N/A

N/A

N/A

$ARE Chapter5 | #B#Z248 Organisational Structure

N/A R2& M A Nota Member of the Meeting

5

112:1;:? Total
O N/A 1/3
J [ 4/4
[ J 4/4
{ [ 4/4
[ J 4/4
[ ] O 2/4
O N/A 0/3
J [ ] 4/4
[ O 3/4
J [ 4/4
O O 2/4
O [ 2/4
[ J 4/4
N/A [ 1/1
N/A L 11
N/A { 1/1
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E5ZEYT
Committees

EESRAHANENM > BREFER
RRRHBERE o 5 BETRTR
IHRBRITEASNEES  UES
B BATHA ©

IEAEEZEgHRELREMREREN
T

1 BERREREZES

Members of the IPCC are divided into four groups to examine investigation
reports submitted by CAPO. The IPCC has also set up five Committees so
as to perform its functions more efficiently.

The terms of reference and members of the five Committees are as
follows:

Serious Complaints Committee

St E

@:TE#ER > AUREERREZEEHER

HIEREEZ ;

(b) B SEF0 I E B2 R AR EE 4R AR 1B 22 Y 5 1)

S

O MRBEBESRIENEXT R

AR > WE BB ERFES ;

() BEZBRERFERNATER > LM

TRRELEZ

O REZEERAHBENHERRER
g%

FEZEBRRIERNEE > HEE

F% & Membership
TFE

HE$2EE 0 BBS » JP(Z20204£1258)
S5BA%E > SBS » P (202141 5#)

%8

SREEEZES > SBS 0 JP
(£2020%125)
ZEAES » SBS o P
(£2021414)

ErgmsEi® L > BBS » MH » OSt) » JP
(£2020%12H)

BUBEREHRERFEEY | 2020/21 TIFRE

Terms of reference

(@) To determine the criteria of serious cases that should come
under the monitoring of the Committee;

(b) To examine and determine special procedures for monitoring
serious complaints;

(c) To examine the need to seek outside professional advice or
service to facilitate the scrutiny of complaint cases;

(d) To examine the findings of serious complaint cases after
investigation has been completed, and put forward
recommendations to the Chairman;

(e) To put forward any issues in relation to the monitoring of
serious complaint cases for the IPCC's deliberation as the
Committee deems appropriate.

Chairmen

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP (7ill Dec 2020)
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP (Since jan 2021)

Members

Hon Chris CHEUNG Wah-fung, SBS, JP
(Till Dec 2020)

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, SBS, JP
(Till Jan 2021)

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
(Till Dec 2020)



SFRER S > SBS > MH » JP
(F20204128)

BRERER S E > MH » JP
BB R L

FRELL

FRI1“EE > BBS> MH» JP
BEEHE

WEBKRE )P
(20214 1 5#)

BREREYSE L > SBS > MH » JP

EXBERE
FXIRFE > MH - JP

BRIEFR1E L > MH
(20214 1 5#)

PREZLL
(20214 1 5HE)

$ARE Chapter5 | #B#Z248 Organisational Structure

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
(Till Dec 2020)

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang

Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP
(Since Jan 2021)

Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS, MH, JP
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP

Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, MH
(Since Jan 2021)

Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo
(Since Jan 2021)
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ERRERAEZESY
Publicity and Survey Committee

Rt E
(a) BHE PR B L AT KA MH RINE

o B E FRYIETE ;

(b) BENMEERARENEFRIERH
o B

— EfYImNA MR flUWE
B WEER TN HMER

[=]= )

— ERE®ED;

— PREMBEEME B R A Rt
& ;

O BBZNHEEEECFEATEENZRA
BEIF > URRENZE AN B
HERBERIE,

(dEEZbO)M()EMERIMNEEMNE

R )

BEZFFEEEABLMAEIRER
RoOHEEEESE,;

N REZEERAHEEL S FEFRAH
FAEE  HEEEEE -

F% & Membership
FE
PREFESSTE » MH > JP

%8

RRKERSTE
(£2020%65)

BRHL L
SRS

FBRELL
(20204 6 BHE)

WEBKLE P
REEFHFLL  SBS

BREBELL
(20214 1 5#E)

BUBEREHRERFEEY | 2020/21 TIFRE

Terms of reference

(@) To consider measures that could enhance the image and public
understanding of the IPCC;

(b) To consider and approve publicity-related activities which have
been budgeted for, including:

— Content and design of publicity materials, such as annual
reports, website, videos, publications and other promotional
materials;

— Launching of publicity activities;
— Selection and commissioning of contractors to assist in such
projects;

(c) To consider and approve the launching of surveys that have
been budgeted for, and the selection and commissioning of
contractors to assist in such projects;

(d) To monitor the progress and quality of the projects in (b) and (c);

(e) To consider and advise on annual publicity plan for the IPCC's
consideration;

(f) To put forward any publicity-related issues for the IPCC’s
deliberation as the Committee deems appropriate.

Chairman
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP

Members

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
(Till Jun 2020)

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah
(Since Jun 2020)

Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP
Mrs Helen YU LAI Ching-ping, SBS

Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo
(Since Jan 2021)



EEEZSY
Management Committee

ek rE e [
() BEEEEERERNEETN;
(b) AR -
— BEESOEARSD ;
— PERERREMABREIMC BHR

MRAEE ERKERINEENE
£~ FRIREIEER ;

— HELERBAEMZENTIETR

£E;

— fAEtEE2S B U LR ERMIR

BEBNEINEN > EFEEE
BRERATZEGERANGH
HEE ;

OREZEEDAHBFENEANTHRE
HEEH MEEEEE -

F% & Membership

EE

VAN

YA T F28M » BBS » |P(E2020£124)

ERBELE 202141 5iE)

%8

HfE#REE > BBS 0 JP
(£20204125)

BR

P — ]

HZEE )P

(2021 1 5#E)

Hpim

f#1%+ > BBS » MH » OSt) » JP

(20204 12H8)

(B

REE

(20204 12H8)

53
Bz

Rk

2kt
HYLL
KBS E

(20214 1 5#E)

T
=+ 3

B

=
=E

Eyt
8%+ >BBS>MH: P
EHIR

(2021 1 5#E)

EX

wmRE

(£2021%F158)

FX
BRIE

JRSTE > MH > JP
fRiEL > MH

(20214 1 5#E)
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Terms of reference
(a) To oversee major areas of work of the Secretariat;
(b) To consider and approve:

— any changes to the annual budget;

— appointment, interdiction from duty, and termination of employment
of employees at Assistant Secretary-General and Senior
Vetting Officer/Senior Research Officer/Senior Manager ranks;

— key administrative matters that affect the services of the
IPCC;

— proposed new contracts with estimated value above
$250,000 or covering a new area of activity, with the
exception of those contracts or activities which come under
the purview of the Publicity and Survey Committee;

(c) To put forward any administrative and management issues for
the IPCC’s deliberation as the Committee deems appropriate.

Chairmen
Ir Edgar KWAN Chi-ping, BBS, JP (7ill Dec 2020)
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung (since jan 2021)

Members

Hon Tony TSE Wai-chuen, BBS, JP
(Till Dec 2020)

Hon Ronick CHAN Chun-ying, JP
(Since Jan 2021)

Dr Eric CHENG Kam-chung, BBS, MH, OStJ, JP
(Till Dec 2020)

Mr Richard HO Kam-wing
(Till Dec 2020)

Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu
(Since Jan 2021)

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP

Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang
(Since Jan 2021)

Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung
(Till Jan 2021)

Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP
Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, MH
(Since Jan 2021)
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BEREFEANZES
Operations Advisory Committee

R fEsEE

(@ MEERKREZAERES - AN
8 5 28 Bl I 7% B R T R R AR B9 (8
> URHMREBBRHNERESE (R
RogZn RBERNEEHE) ME
EN—REEREEZEFHEOWERR
HER UKTEEEBR LR
& MELEEEE

b) B FERRGARBHEIEDS
FoURRBREEENERELIFE
HEEERE

ORWERSEZ  BRAREE > IR
BENEBRFEFRMHER  LEE
ERETERFHER  UEHEAR
MR FFEEE TR (BEREEESR
R IR AR 5 R B EIR &) - LUE—
FRABRZCEARBREFORERR
PR s AR AU TIER W E RN
ELEERBELTFM EBFM -»
L EBRER - BRHARFEER
RIBVIE a5 FRF | % BVsE > I

EEEBRTIFHER  MEEEZ

&

(d)MERSREEE TEFERTH
RABMRERRHER > LEEE
BRTFHESR  HEEEEE -

F% & Membership

EE

HFRERSEAE » SBS > MH » JP(Z20204125)
FAKWBARE (202141 5%)

BUBEREHRERFEEY | 2020/21 TIFRE

Terms of reference

(@ To advise the Secretariat on general issues and matters of
significant importance arising from the scrutiny and examination of
Reportable Complaints (RC), Notifiable Complaints (NC)
categorisation and cases resolved by Expression of Dissatisfaction
Mechanism (EDM) as well as monitoring actions on post
endorsement issues (now renamed as “Service Quality
Improvement Initiatives”), and, where it deems appropriate, make
recommendations for the IPCC’s consideration;

(b) To coordinate Working Level Meetings (WLM) with CAPO and
nominate IPCC Members to chair the WLM;

(c) Upon review, observation or report of the Secretariat, to advise
on the existing police complaint process and, where appropriate
and necessary, make recommendations to streamline the
existing workflows for complaint handling, from the intake to
disposal of complaints, with a view to further improving the
efficiency and effectiveness of the IPCC case examination
process; and to this end it will be consulted by the Secretariat
on the review of the IPCC Case Examination Manual, police
manuals, orders, standing procedures, instructions or guidelines
which are related to complaints or complaints handling, and, where
it deems appropriate, make recommendations for the IPCC’s
consideration;

(d) To advise the Secretariat on research projects and studies to be
undertaken by the Secretariat in relation to the work of the IPCC,
and, where it deems appropriate, make recommendations for
the IPCC’s consideration.

Chairmen
Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP (it bec 2020)
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu (Since jan 2021)
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%8 Members

fRERES L4 » MH » JP Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, MH, JP
kB E Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen
(E20204%64) (Till Jun 2020)

BBt Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan
FoKIBRE Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu
(F2021#18) (Till Jan 2021)

BEEHE Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang
REEFL T SBS Mrs Helen YU LAl Ching-ping, SBS
RIEWAESE > MH 5 P Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP
(2021 1 B5#E) (Since Jan 2021)
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BIGERESRERFEES

ZREHEET

Legal Committee

R fEsEE

EREFEZEERELETINERRE
B> A TREREARERER

() BB IFEEMMELENERMRE ;

(b) H(EEEHRE) RELESR
STRIBVERRE

(O BEE G T (EPTELE T AR

j‘L. >

PRIERAR R &2

) BEgw

m = =8

éFﬂh )

(€) 4E 1 B2 85 55 0 T 75 R 5 EL P 4 25
B EL 5% A2 R o

AREHEZEERBZRWERHENIT
MERIE ©

MEER,HEEFELNE

F% & Membership

£

BB R KRN (22020 105)
MEBERAREN » SBS » JP(2020F1051%8)

%8
RkEHE > BBS JP
(20214 1 5#)

FFoRERSE 2 SBS» MH » JP
(2020412 5)

BREERAEAM
(2020410 B )

FmELt
wafE Lt > BBS > MH » JP
ERBRE

(E2020%F6H)
BABLL - P

MEBERAREEN > SBS » JP
(£2020#105)

12020/2 1 TR

Terms of reference

Legal Committee is to comment and express views on the
following as may be required by the Council or Secretariat from
time to time.

(@) Legal issues arising from the examination of complaint
cases;

(b) Interpretation of the IPCCO and IPCC’s internal rules and
regulations;

(c) Legal research arising from or incidental to the Council’s
work;

(d) Legal issues arising from the operation and/or administration
of the Council;

(e) Any other legal issues related or incidental to the Council’s
work.

Legal Committee may require the Secretariat to assist in carrying
out the above.

Chairmen
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC (il Oct 2020)
Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SBS, SC, JP (since Oct 2020)

Members

Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP
(Since Jan 2021)

Mr Herman HUI Chung-shing, SBS, MH, JP
(Till Dec 2020)

Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC
(Since Oct 2020)

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP

Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung
(Till Jun 2020)

Ms Jane Curzon LO, JP

Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SBS, SC, JP
(Till Oct 2020)
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HES

Observers

EBERESAIANZT REBBREZMESE  Under the Observers Scheme, the Secretary for Security may appoint
BATHERZEGERE > HHEZEEE  persons deemed fit as IPCC Observers to assist the Council in observing the
ZRFERRBENBAEABRKZFFOS  manner in which CAPO handles and investigates Reportable Complaints.
o MEHAN > BEGHREMZEWMT ©  The following s a list of Observers in the current reporting period:

BuERE Name of Observers
1 EXRGE#ERLE )P Mr Rex AUYEUNG Pak-kuen, JP
2 EEEESRAE Mr BOU Shing-ip
3 PRBEZLMH-JP Ms CHAN Hang, MH, JP
4  BREBEXLP Ms Jenny CHAN Heung-lin, JP
5  PBRIREFKLE MH Mr Calvin CHAN Ka-wai, MH
6 [FRiEREL > SBS P Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, SBS, JP
() 7 BRIREEE Mr Haydn CHAN Mou-keung
8 MBEELE Mr Tony CHAN Tung-ngok
) 9 MRERELLE Mr CHAN Wai-chuen
10 BRREZELRE Mr CHAN Wing-fung
11 BREBEEEIE > MH > JP Prof CHAN Yuk-kit, MH, JP
() 12 ELBERE Mr Aaron Raj CHANDRASAKARAN
13 RE®EshfkE Mr Calvin CHAU
® 14 WEAHBLE Mr CHENG Ming-git
15  ERARMFHE > MH Mr Mathew CHENG Muk-lam, MH
16 EPAIEEL > MH > JP Dr Baldwin CHENG Shing-fung, MH, JP
17 EBAEREEL > MH Dr Edwin CHENG Shing-lung, MH
18 SRIEFESRE Mr Charles CHEUNG Cheuk-yiu
19 REBERRXL P Mrs Peggy CHEUNG Po-yee, JP
® 20 REREL Dr CHEUNG Wah-keung
21  sREkEESRE Mr CHEUNG Yam-lung
22 SRIKENEL Dr CHEUNG Yee-lai
23 sRAEzL P Ms Mimi CHEUNG Yee-may, JP
24 BIKEFRE Mr Gordon CHIN Shing-hoi
25  BOKBEEHE Mr Wilkie CHOI Wing-kee
26 HEELL Ms Christina CHONG Dong-ying
27 REFER L MH Ms Joanne CHONG Sze-pui, MH
28 REREEL > MH Dr CHOW Kam-wai, MH
29 E¥ERRS4E > BBS > MH Mr Alan CHOW Yiu-ming, BBS, MH
30 #@BEELL Ms CHUNG Ching-may
® 2020F4A1BHER ® 2020F 1181 8HEH ® 20201181 8EHK
Newly-appointed Observer (1 Apr 2020) Newly-appointed Observer (1 Nov 2020) Retired Observer (1 Nov 2020)
® 2020F 68 1BHERD 20204 11 B 23 B#ifEm ©® 20204 -2021 FFHE
Newly-appointed Observer (1 Jun 2020) Newly-appointed Observer (23 Nov 2020) Resigned Observer (2020-2021)
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BRaRE Name of Observers

31 #@#EE\ELZL Ms CHUNG Yin-ting
32 EEgERE Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit
33 AXEEE Mr James Mathew FONG
34 ®EEEL Dr Shirley FU
35 BERESE > MH Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang, MH
36 fAIRMEE Mr Alan HO Ka-ki
37 RIS Mr HO Siu-kong
38 fARERELE Mr HO Ting-hong
39  fIFHLE Mr James HO Tsz-kong
40 fEIfEREEL Dr HO Wai-kuen
41 RESRE Mr Alec HO Yat-wan
42 fagE L Ms HO Yuen-han
® 43 GErEARARt Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming
44 FLKEHEHZ L Ms HUNG Wing-ki
45 BRI+ Dr Tiffany IP Nga-min
46 wEB=RE Mr Hugh Alexander KAM Tsun-ting
® 47 MHESxL Ms Carmen KAN Wai-mun
® 48 M#BWELE Mr KWAN Chiu-ping
® 49 FREfMEE Mr Spencer KWAN Chor-chung
50 MEEELE > BBS > MH» P Dr Lawrence LAM Chi-kit, BBS, MH, JP
51 MEBREELE Dr Otis LAM Cho-bun
52 MIRALE Mr LAM Chun-sing
53  MREEBKSE > MH Mr LAM Faat-kang, MH
54 MEBRE Mr LAM Ho-yeung
55  MEEFISTE Mr Laurie LAM Hoy-lee
56 MEEKLE > MH P Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH, JP
57 ST E Mr Terence LAU Chun-kai
58 FEE#ESKL > MH P Mr LAU Hing-wah, MH, JP
59 1&xBE%LE > MH P Mr LAU Ka-keung, MH, JP
60 ZBIXEEE Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung
61 RENEE Mr Billy LAU Wai-kwong
62 BIERLE Mr Ellis LAU Ying-tung
63 FEHXL Ms LEE Fu-fan
64 FHELE Mr LEE Sai-kee
® 2020F4A1BHER ® 2020% 1181 8HES ® 20201181 8EHK
Newly-appointed Observer (1 Apr 2020) Newly-appointed Observer (1 Nov 2020) Retired Observer (1 Nov 2020)
® 2020F 68 1BHERD 20204 11 B 23 B#ifEm ©® 20204 -2021 FFHE
Newly-appointed Observer (1 Jun 2020) Newly-appointed Observer (23 Nov 2020) Resigned Observer (2020-2021)
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BxRaRE Name of Observers
65 FHEFUT Ms Vivian LEE Ying-shih
66 FFFEEX L MH P Mrs Tennessy LEE HUI Mei-sheung, MH, JP
67 ZRRELL Ms LEUNG Suk-chong
68 FEMEL Ms LI Ka-yan
69 FREE Ms LI Sum-yuet
70 PBEEfEit Ms LIAO Shu-hang
71 EERYBHE4 > MH Dr LIU Kai-ming, MH
72 EBiREiE+ Dr LIU Kam-hing
73 EEWELAE Mr LO Fat-keung
74 BRYESRE Mr Vincent LO Kai-fu
75 EIRESLLE S MH P Mr Norman LO Kam-wah, MH, JP
76  #mAEL Dr LO Pui-yin
77  E{CHELEMH P Mr LO Yan-lai, MH, JP
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79 BERLE Mr LUI Chi-ho
80 BEMNKE > MH Mr LUK King-kwong, MH
81 ZH&YEL+ Ms Mabel MAK Lok-sheung
82 ZHFERLL Ms Yanice MAK Wing-yan
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84  EHIBYRED Rev MOK Yun-fai
85 {RiBLLEE Mr Aaron NG Hoi-shan
86 RBREXL P Ms NG Ling-ling, JP
87 RMEIIZAM Ir NG Pak-hung
88 LBRAHEXE Mr NG Sum-chun
89 LRRiE&LE Mr Andy NG Wang-tsang
90 RikxE=HE BBS: P Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP
91 EE&XE Mr Lucas NGAN Chun
92 =LKL MH Mr Victor PANG Wing-seng, MH
93 BRIFLE Mr Gavin POON Ka-ming
94 EBIESE )P Mr PUN Kwok-wabh, JP
95 HIEEREE Mr Rex SHAM Pui-sum
96 HEFSHE BBS )P Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
97 EERBEELHE > BBS>MH P Mr SIU Chor-kee, BBS, MH, JP
98 ®mHBRXL Ms Crystal SO Hoi-yan
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99 BRERB®&E Mr Eliott Hancock SUEN
100 HMExBRSE4E > MH Mr Kyran SZE, MH
101 |BRELRE Mr Wilson TAM Wai-shun
102 WEERE Mr TANG Chi-wang
103 EERRE Mr Hugh TONG Chun-wai
104 RBEERLZL Ms TONG Zi-yan
105 EFRZL Ms Rebecca TSAI Ching-yu
106 #EEIZXT Ms Sherry TSAI Hiu-wai
107 BEEYXL Ms TSANG Ka-lai
108 BXRERE Mr TSANG Man-biu
109 BXHEFTE Mr TSANG Man-hing
110 BEEXTL Ms TSANG Tsz-lui
o 111 BEREXE Mr Newman TSANG Yiu-man
112 #HiEEEL Dr Patrick TSE Kwing-chuen
113 FEZZ“L Ms Gigi WONG Ching-chi
114 =ERIEL )P Dr WONG Chung-leung, JP
115 FEERL Ms Jacqueline WONG
116 EEBRLE Mr WONG Ting-hong
117 HR=EEL )P Dr Kitty WU Kit-ying, JP
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119 FEEEHE Prof Michael YAM Chi-ho
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126 1HRERE Mr Alan YOUNG Tim-tsan
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The IPCC is supported by a full-time Secretariat, headed by Secretary-
General, with a total of 74 posts on the establishment in 2020/21. The
major function of the Secretariat is to assist Council Members in examining
complaint investigation reports and promoting the work of the IPCC.

The organisational chart of the IPCC Secretariat as of 31 March 2021 is as
below:

HER (BH)

Secretary-General (Atg)

HARSE
Personal Secretary

EfRRER

Legal Adviser

BIRER (178)) (B1E)
Deputy Secretary-General
(Operations) (Atg)

BRER (BE)

Deputy Secretary-General
(Management)

MEMERQ) (BE) BhIEMER (2)
Assistant Secretary-General (1) (Atg) Assistant Secretary-General (2)

Sz BE1 w2 w3 s d7 swvEs4 sESs  Bwe  wES

Research Vetting Vetting
Team Team 1 Team 2

Vetting Vetting Vetting Vetting Vetting Vetting
Team 3 Team 7 Team 4 Team 5 Team 6 Team 8
BIRER ANERK
-~ e NHEARE TR BERHRE
1 EERRTEER . .
Finance & Public Human Information
Relations Resources & Technology
Corporate Team Administration Team
Services Team Team
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Independent Auditor’s Report to Independent Police Complaints Council

(RiIF(BILERE S RERFZEGHA) ML)
(ESTABLISHED UNDER THE INDEPENDENT POLICE COMPLAINTS COUNCIL ORDINANCE)
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BE_Z_—F=-H=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Independent Police
Complaints Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 118 to 139, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
reserves and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2021, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Council in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Council for the financial statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and for such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible for
assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Council either intends to liquidate
the Council or to ceases operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 29 of Schedule 1 of the Independent Police
Complaints Council Ordinance (Cap.604), and for no other purposes. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,



piEdlZ £ b RAEZEREEGFME
HHNERERRAENERE SN RAEZER
FEERMENNE KRR AR RS ©

TR ESH AP ERER] 0 R ETE
EREStEF > EENLIEH SHER
BMIEFNARMERER -

B SEFRAESTERINEMNER
R B sHAF BRIKER S M -

H SERARECEGERNGE
MR AR o RIBFAIEIRBE SRS
HERSHFRASENBREMNEXR
FHEEM  EMAEERE HEHF
BISERENELEERRE - MRFKFIR
BREEEAREEN BB BELH
MREPRAEAEIZVBRETN
HRIREE - REBMNKRETRRE > BIH
PREERIFEFREER - HMANEHR
BERZHMENRE B LIS B &

E57NE Chapter6 | BAF5#R3K Financial Statements

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Council.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease

e AM> KRRFHHBRAEE

B EETEREKLE -

to continue as a going concern.

o TEMBHRRNERIIERAN - WA« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
N BERE > URHHERRES financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
BERBRZMEE o financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

PREMEIESN > HfIE BEEETE
MEHE KEZH  EXEFER
F > SERAFESESPHE A ERIESR
ERE KRR ©

We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

fteke 1oy L

=HREETHEFEIZFABIRAE PATRICK WONG C.P.A. LIMITED

MEGSTED Certified Public Accountants
2 hEER LAU YUK MING HAROLD
BRHEGETAD FCPA (Practising), MSCA
MEEEZHRIE:P05468 Certified Public Accountant (Practising),
Hong Kong Practising Certificate Number: PO5468

:;:—E/\H:-HEE! 24 August 2021
&8 Hong Kong
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BHE_ES_—F=A=+—HL=EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

Statement of Comprehensive Income

HisE 2021 2020
Notes S $
A Income
B Government subventions 6 101,538,583 106,230,945
HfA  Otherincome T 2,058,527 547,705
103,597,110 106,778,650
zi#f Expenditure
BTm4 Staff costs 8 59,825,337 61,233,727
—RRRATHER General and administrative expenses 8 29,835,614 39,605,855
NEZEZEME  Honorarium to Council members 18 828,580 870,200
BiF5&ER  Finance cost 8 589,873 491,658
91,079,404 102,201,440
FEERGFREMNHLAEE
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 8 12,517,706 4,577,210

BI122BEF 139 BZUBRERMEEBEMBRERZ —87
BIZBMBREERNE 1L KRIIVE

The notes on pages 122 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report — Pages 115 and 117
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Statement of Financial Position

RZEZ—F=A=+—H
At 31 March 2021

E57NE Chapter6 | BAF5#R3K Financial Statements

M 2021 2020
Notes S $
JEREHEE Non-current asset
EE&E Fixed assets 10 23,835,785 35,976,369
FENEE Current assets
e KRFEMHIE Deposits and prepayments 5,557,058 5,084,521
HithfEWgTIE  Other receivables 452,118 13,562
ReERREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents 11 44,649,799 37,979,364
50,658,975 43,077,447
FEI&fE  Current liabilities
IEIEERTESR  Deferred government subventions 12 - 609,583
HiEARIEREStER  Other payables and accruals 13 10,449,243 14,469,681
fAE&aE Lease liabilities 15 12,110,852 11,724,179
22,560,095 26,803,443
MEEEFE Netcurrentassets 28098880 16,274,004
BEMEMTEIBE Total assets less current liabilities 51,934,665 52,250,373
JEFEIAaE Non-current liabilities
ET#mENEE4E  Provision for staff gratuities 14 6,156,222 6,878,784
fAE&E Lease liabilities 15 4,107,538 16,218,390
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 10,263,760 23,097,174
BEFHE Netassets 41,670,905 29,153,199
f#% Reserves
REHB®EF  Accumulated surplus 16 41,670,905 29,153,199

FER_ZE_—FN\AZ+OEMELRERAMARPFERR
Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 24 August 2021.

FimsEF 0 SBS o JP
TE

Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP
Chairman
FI22EEF 139 BEZMBRRMTEBEAMBHRR 2 —E5
BUZMMBREERNRE 115 RII7TE
The notes on pages 122 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report — Pages 115 and 117
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Statement of Changes in Reserves

BHE_ES_—F=A=+—HL=EE
Year ended 31 March 2021

Rt Bz
Accumulated
surplus
S
HRZFE—NFENB—AB2Z&F
Balance at 1 April 2019 24,575,989
FRBGFKREHE WG
surplus and total comprehensive income for theyear 4,577,210
RIE-EF=A=+—HRMA—BZ4&F
Balances at 31 March 2020 and at 1 April 2020 29,153,199
FRBHGFREZENE
surplus and total comprehensive income for theyear . 12,517,706
WZEZ—FZA=+—H2Z&H%
Balance at 31 March 2021 41,670,905

FI22EEF 139 BEZMBRRMTEBEAMBHRR 2 —E5
BUZMMBREERNRE 115 RII7TE

The notes on pages 122 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report — Pages 115 and 117
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Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ES_—S=A=+—HLEE
Year ended 31 March 2021

M 2021 2020
Note S $

EIE;EE Operating activities

FABRBGREEKE

Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 12,517,706 4,577,210

BEMTIIEEELAEE . Adjustments for:

—3ffE Depreciation 17,075,534 11,595,644

— BI#58HA  Finance cost 589,873 491,658
_ —MBKA Interestincome . (705272) (543,177)
CEETEEE S ERG
Operating surplus before working capital changes 29,477,841 16,121,335
RERFEMTIBEZEM  Increase in deposits and prepayments (472,537) (836,462)
HMpEWTIBZ 18I0 Increase in other receivables (431,910) -
IEIERUF#EBh 2 /2> Decrease in deferred government subventions (609,583) (771,945)
HihfEIRIEREERZ (i) /18m
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and accruals (4,020,438) 8,108,173
ET4mMEEEz Ohl) /1Em
(Decrease)/increase in provision for staff gratuities ~ (722,562) 636,851
REEETHEEZIRERAFE
Net cash generated from operating activites 23,220,811 23,257,952
{2 E;E8 Investing activities

BBABETEEE Purchase of fixed assets (4,934,950) (4,166,494)
_BWH#E Interest received .~ 698626 532,837
RREHEHZREMLFER  Net cash used in investing activities (4,236,324)  (3,633,657)
FbE ;%8 Financing activities

BHEERENEALTS Capital element of lease rentals paid (11,724,179) (6,559,246)
 BHBSESHFBHS Interest element of lease rentalspaid —  (589,873) (491,658)
RRMEEH ZREMLFE  Net cash used in financing activities | (12,314,052)  (7,050,904)
RERFEEB/MZILINFEEE
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 6,670,435 12,573,391
FNZRERFEEEBY
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of theyear 37,979,364 25,405,973
FRZRERFEEEBY
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 11 44,649,799 37,979,364

FI22EEF 139 BEZMBRRMTEBEAMBHRR 2 —E5
BUZMMBREERNRE 115 RII7TE

The notes on pages 122 to 139 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report — Pages 115 and 117
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

The Independent Police Complaints Council (the “Council”) is a body
corporate established under the Independent Police Complaints Council
Ordinance (Cap. 604) (the “Ordinance”). Under the Ordinance, the Council
assumes its statutory role as the authority for observing, monitoring and
reviewing the handling and investigation of reportable complaints, and
making recommendations to the Commissioner of Police or the Chief
Executive or both of them in respect of the handling or investigation of
reportable complaints as specified in the Ordinance. The Council also
monitors actions taken or to be taken in respect of any member of the
police force by the Commissioner in connection with reportable
complaints, and to advise them of its opinion on such actions.

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements, its primary financial and capital
management objectives are to maintain a balance between annual
income and expenditure, so that it has the ability to operate as a going
concern and perform its statutory roles and functions.

The Council is primarily financed by government subventions. Any
operating surplus shall be carried forward to the following financial year
to meet future expenditure required for the operations of the Council.

2. Statement of compliance with Hong Kong financial
reporting standards

The Council’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. A
summary of significant accounting policies is set out in note 3.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements is
at historical cost.

(b) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Fixed assets (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, as follows:

Owned assets

Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years

Right-of-use asset

Leasehold land and building Over the lease term
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of fixed assets is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Council transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Council neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.
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(d)

(e)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowances for expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Council recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a
default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Council measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected
credit losses”), or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Council measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount
is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

() Leases

0]

(ii)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Council assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Council as a lessee
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Council applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;
(b) any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received; and

() anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Council.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Council is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life or the lease term.
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()

(8)

(h)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)
(i) The Council as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Council recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Council uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Council remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

(@) the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

(b) the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value.

Other payables

Other payables are initially measured at fair value and, after initial
recognition, at amortised cost, except for short-term payables with
no stated interest rate and the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at their original invoice amount.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition
(i) Government subventions

Government subventions are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the subvention will
be received and the Council will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government subventions relating to the purchase of fixed
assets are included in deferred income and are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

(iii)

Sundry income

Sundry income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of reporting period, the Council reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

() Employee benefits

0]

(ii)

Employee leave and gratuity entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and gratuity are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and gratuity as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefit costs

The Council has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the MPF Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance for contract staff. The Council contributes 5%
of the relevant income of staff members under the MPF Scheme
and subject to ceiling of $1,500 per month. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Council, in funds
under the control of trustee.

Payments to the MPF Scheme are charged as an expense as
they fall due.

(m) Related parties

0

(iD

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Council if that person:

(@) has control or joint control over the Council;

(b) has significant influence over the Council; or

(0 is a member of the key management personnel of the
Council.

An entity is related to the Council if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@ The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Council or an entity
related to the Council.

(b) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in ().

(0 A person identified in (i)(@) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity.

(d) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Council.
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4. Changes in accounting policies

The Council has initially applied the new and revised HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA that are first effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2020, including:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8, Definition of material

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Council’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
financial statements.

5. Critical accounting estimates and judgement

The Council's management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Council’s accounting policies
that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The assumptions,
estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While
the management reviews their judgements, estimates and assumptions
continuously, the actual results will seldom equal to the estimates.

Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the financial risk
management are set out in note 17. There are no other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of asset and liabilities within the next
financial year.

6. Government subventions

Government subventions represent the funds subvented by the Hong
Kong Government for the Council’s services which is determined with
regard to the needs of the Council as presented in its annual budget and
proposed projects.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2020/21



7. HfthigA

7. Otherincome

2021 2020

S $

FIBURA Interestincome 705,272 543,177
MW  Sundryincome 1,353,255 4528

2,058,527 547,705

8. FARFREEME

8. Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year

FABBREEEWEEEA Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year is arrived at after
charging:
2021 2020
S $
(@) BIpEk# Staff costs
— &I AREEME  Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 1,131,102 1,108,008
,,,,,, —#E ~ TERAMAEF Salaries, wages and other benefits 58,694,235 60,125,719
59,825,337 61,233,727
(b) —R&BKITE(ER Generaland administrative expenses
ZEETENE  Auditor's remuneration 40,000 39,500
MENSBERERSEER Rent, rates and management fee 2,444,130 5,530,994
EERATRHBEEH Publicity and public educational affairs 846,031 8,820,942
#H=E5t8| Observers’ scheme 523,733 495,052
f®B2  Insurance 97,889 69,066
#EEFN{FE  Repairs and maintenance 2,636,708 3,006,268
EIMNEEFSEAR Overseas duty visit - 160,010
AFAEEE  Utilities 537,039 403,935
#rE& Depreciation 17,075,534 11,595,644
JELEMIER  Non-recurrent projects 1,715,637 7,536,695
,,,,,, B Others 3918913 1947749
29,835,614 39,605,855
() RiZEMZs Finance cost
HEEEZFE  Interest on lease liabilities 589,873 491,658
9. IRI1E 9. Taxation
RAR (RS IRB) 58 87 IRRIMRTE » ZNFEE  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial
RRW  ALAEGEATAMBBRRSIE  statements as the Council is exempted from profits tax pursuant to
EENEREE - section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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10. BIEEE 10. Fixed assets
idiiti
BEEE BE
Right-of-use
Owned assets assets
HELH
HEREIRE HEARRE HAERE Bl izt RigF g
Furniture Leasehold
Leasehold and Office Computer land and
improvements fixtures equipment  equipment  Sub-total buildings Total
S S S S S S S
M4 Cost
RZBZZENE—H
At 1 April 2020 6,171,337 1,052,114 1,628,074 22,996,806 31,848,331 34,501,815 66,350,146
E  Additions 1,401,751 329,696 392,859 2,810,644 4,934,950 - 4,934,950
®& Disposas - (2646) (405600 - (43200 - (43,206)
KZEZ—#F=F=1+—H
At31March2021 7573088 1379164 1980373 25807450 36740075 34501815 | 71,241,890
ZHE  Accumulated depreciation
RIZZZHNA—H
At 1 April 2020 6,029,635 987,231 1,302,103 15,210,944 23,529,913 6,843,864 30,373,777
FEAITE  Charge for the year 413,173 120,731 166,685 4,521,538 5,222,127 11,853,407 17,075,534
REGS Witebackondisposals T @eke)  (0560) R 2 2L ... 3208
RZF_—F=R=+—H
At 31 March 2021 ... 6442808 1105316 1428208 15/32482 28708834 18697271 47,406,105
BREB(E  Net book value
RZEZ—#=B=+—H
At 31 March 2021 1,130,280 273,848 552,145 6,074,968 8,031,241 15,804,544 23,835,785
% Cost
RIZ—NENA—H
At 1 April 2019 6,171,337 1,077,539 1,578,694 18,879,692 27,707,262 - 27,707,262
1®E  Additions - - 49,380 4,117,114 4,166,494 34,501,815 38,668,309
RE Disposals ] T ) S T B O )
RZFZZF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2020 6,171,337 1,052,114 1,628,074 22,996,806 31,848,331 34,501,815 66,350,146
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10. EEEE (48) 10. Fixed assets (continued)

idiiti
BEEE BE
Right-of-use
Owned assets assets
HEL
HEREIR HEARKE HAZRE ElixtE st RiEF g
Furniture Leasehold
Leasehold and Office Computer land and
improvements  fixtures equipment  equipment  Sub-total buildings Total
S $ S $ S S S
B3FE  Accumulated depreciation
RZE-NEMNE—H
At 1 April 2019 5,247,097 825,311 1,170,026 11,561,124 18,803,558 - 18,803,558
FAITE  Charge for the year 782,538 187,345 132,077 3,649,820 4,751,780 6,843,864 11,595,644
REWE Witebackondisposals U 0 B S N = B T @525
RZFZFE=A=1—H
At3IMarch2020 . 6029635 987231 | 1302103 15210944 23529913 6843864 | 30,313,177
SREE(E  Net book value
RZE_ZF=R=1—H
At 31 March 2020 141,702 64,383 325,971 7,785,862 8,318,418 27,657,951 35,976,369
11. RERRELEEY 11. Cash and cash equivalents
2021 2020
S $
$R177FRr  Bank balances 9,649,799 27,979,364
EIHAHARR /DR =18 B B ERRTERR
Time deposits with original maturity lessthan 3months SR 10,000,000
BE&RIREEMEY Cash and cash equivalents 44,649,799 37,979,364
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12. Deferred government subventions

2021 2020
S $

RIB-EF —E—NEMB—HWEER
Balance as at 1 April 2020/2019 609,583 1,381,528
FERER AU AREEE
Recognised asincome intheyear ~~~  (609,583) | (771,945)
RIZ %/ —T_FF=H=+—H0EHR
Balance as at 31 March 2021/2020 - 609,583

FHERERTECANRAEREE I
RG> HEERMEEUEFHNET
B o

13, HithEIRIEREs &

The subventions received were mainly for the development of a secure
email system for electronic communication among Members and the
Secretariat.

13. Other payables and accruals

2021 2020

S $

Bt#5&M& Financial liabilities 7,195,003 11,504,056
AMEEYAF G RAERR  Unutilised annual leave balances 3,254,240 2,965,625

10,449,243 14,469,681

HthE(IRIBRES ERRA N —FRE
8o

14, BTHRMEEE

Other payables and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.

14. Provision for staff gratuities

2021 2020
S $

MRIE-BE “E—HNENHA—B4ERF
Balance as at 1 April 2020/2019 6,878,784 6,241,933
KEEBETREMAE  Provision made for the year 5,236,017 5,067,194
AEEBAEHE Provision utilised for theyear (5,958,579) (4,430,343
RIZ %/ —T-FF=H=+—H0EEH
Balance as at 31 March 2021/2020 6,156,222 6,878,784

ETHNRMEREER T XNETHEYN
METNREE REsAmINEMRIL -

Provision for staff gratuities is set up for the gratuity payments which will
be payable to employees of the Council who complete their contracts
commencing from the date of their employment.
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15. fHE&AE 15. Lease liabilities

2021 2020
S $
REMAEHIE  Minimum lease payments due
— —fR  Within 1 year 12,389,604 12,314,052
- THEMEBRFN ltoSyears 4,129,868 16,519,472
16,519,472 28,833,524
A ARREAZM  Less: future finance charges . (301,082) (890,955)
THE&EIRE  Present value of lease liabilities 16,218,390 27,942,569
PR1E% ¢ Analysed as:
TRENEBS  Current portion 12,110,852 11,724,179
Jem#Essy Non-currentportion 4,107,538 16,218,390
16,218,390 27,942,569

16. RstEER

REEERNEAXEE_T—tEXA
“+ZHEFT(THRZHETSE) (HS
fij)%’/\ﬁﬁ FERUFREREFEAREA

ZIEEEEMERRHE > MZRRRBER
RBHZMREEEEEENTERN25%
MZMBFRRZ #EHEBHZMBEERL
FUHEBERN25%  BRIEFGEMEEH R
BERERAE > AERIEBEH LRV
BRETFEBHAA o

FERAHNEERSARERESTE
FEBERENHE  WEGRAMZS
@%%éiﬁﬂfﬂ’]ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%{% B —F
ZA=+—HETRBECEZZE 8 -

17. M TR
FERESHMEEN AU TER

16. Accumulated surplus

In accordance with section 6 of the Memorandum of Administrative
Arrangements (“MAA”) dated 22 June 2017 signed between the Hong
Kong Government and the Council, the Council is allowed to keep and
accumulate any unspent recurrent subvention as reserve, subject to the
condition that the reserve accumulated should not exceed 25% of its
recurrent subvention of that financial year. If the reserve as at the end of
the financial year exceeds 25% of the recurrent subvention of that
financial year, the Council shall return the amount in excess of the limit to
the Hong Kong Government, except with the approval of Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury.

The Council considers the amount of excessive reserve for the year has
not been conclusive up to the reporting date, no provision for the refund
of excessive reserve to the Hong Kong Government has been made as at
31 March 2021 accordingly (2020: nil).

17. Financial instruments

The Council has classified its financial assets in the following categories:

2021 2020
S $
FHSSHRRASTIBRAYSREAE  Financial assets at amortised cost
¥% Deposits 3,574,106 3,574,106
HhfEWEIE Other receivables 452,118 13,562
ReRkBeSEAEY Cashand cash equivalents 44,649,799 37,979,364
48,676,023 41,567,032
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E57NE Chapter6 | BAF5#R3K Financial Statements

17. £fI A (8) 17. Financial instruments (continued)
rEREEMBESAUTER : The Council has classified its financial liabilities in the following
categories:
2021 2020
S $
FBsE R AYBRAVERAME  Financial liabilities at amortised cost
HithfEFRIERESTER  Other payables and accruals 7,195,003 11,504,056
fHE&E Lease liabilities 16,218,390 27,942,569

23,413,393 39,446,625

FrE€MTEMIREERE _T_T&Ex% Al financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different
—E-—F=A=+—HHAAEMEIR from their fair values as at 31 March 2020 and 2021.
BEKRER -

rEMNEEFHRESMIAEFEEHES  The Council is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk
Al SEELREBREFERRAR - &AgiE  arising in the normal course of its operation and financial instruments. The
BUTHREEZZERAR » LUREZ%EA Council's risk management objectives, policies and processes mainly
SH ARG FREERIIEREARFMS focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of these risks on its

4 o financial performance and position by closely monitoring the individual
exposure.
(a) EERAR (@) Credit risk
rKegrESAEREERR > MES The Council has no concentration of credit risk. The maximum
RiEHEEN M FEEFRMSAMKRE exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the
B -AEgNEERBEERBHEIRT financial assets. The Council is exposed to credit risk on financial
ER - RITERNEERBEER assets, mainly attributable to deposits with banks. The credit risk on
FHZRITHASEBIRITRGRE bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are authorised
HIBA P14 o financial institutions regulated under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.
2021 2020
S $

BUEWE  Summary quantitative data

¥% Deposits 3,574,106 3,574,106
HihpEU=IE Other receivables 452,118 13,562
$R{T7FEmr  Bank balances 9,649,799 27,979,364
EIHREARR/ DS =B A N EHAFR

Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 35,000,000 10,000,000

48,676,023 41,567,032
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(b)

(©)

ERTIA (&)
RENES AR

FENRBETAREEZREHGTH
BE-ATHESFHEREE  #
FranREMBEEEY > LUnkE
REEMFNER -
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FHNEHER ZFEHERER
BRIFENSGORER (BEERE
Sl EMIFRFIR|E HRBF R (W0
BHER) stEMMAFER) UhAEEH
FERERN B RF B ARG

17.

Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

The Council is exposed to liquidity risk on financial liabilities. It
manages its funds conservatively by maintaining a comfortable level
of cash and cash equivalents in order to meet continuous
operational need. The Council ensures that it maintains sufficient
cash which is available to meet its liquidity.

The details of remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Council can be required to pay are as follows:

SHEEOE 33 —ERE Hid—F
FREEE REREE HEREE (EFRBARF
Total
contractual Within 1 Over 1 year
Carrying  undiscounted year or on but within
amount cash flow demand 5 years
$ S $ $
2021
HMEMAFIEREER  Other payables and accruals 7,195,003 7,195,003 7,195,003 -
MRAMR Leaseliabilles 16218390 16519472 12389604 4129868
23,413,393 23,714,475 19,584,607 4,129,868
2020
HithfEIZUERESER  Other payables and accruals 11,504,056 11,504,056 11,504,056 -
MRAR leaselabilites 27,942569 28833524 12314052 16,519,472
39,446,625 40,337,580 23,818,108 16,519,472

F R E B

AEHNHNREAREZRERITER
FENIRTEREEREHRER > 7
KEBERME - AL > ZAEFRBFAEE
HEMERMRER -

BUBEREHRERFEEY | 2020/21 TIFRE

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Council’s exposure on interest rate risk mainly arises from its
cash deposits with bank. The Council mainly holds deposits with
bank in saving account and the exposure is considered not
significant. In consequence, no material exposure on interest rate
risk is expected.
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17. Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Summary quantitative data

2021 2020

FE&RMBEE Floating-rate financial assets

$R17457 Deposits with banks
ZIHARABR/ A =18 B M EHATER

5,704,482 11,307,397

Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months 35,000,000 10,000,000

AERE BT ESE N E RS ESR
BN > AASERTGEILAKE A
BN BRI A EEEEARE -
d UAAEEHEZEHMTIA
RIBEHFR > ABLRESRT AN
NAHRBEGIEE o
18. EXFAKtFRH

FEREAABMOINERNET IR HE
LI

40,704,482 21,307,397

No sensitivity analysis for the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk
arising from deposits with bank is prepared since based on the
management’s assessment the exposure is considered not significant.
(d) Financial instrument at fair value
At the end of reporting period, there were no financial instruments
stated at fair value.
18. Material related party transactions

The Council had the following material related party transactions during
the year:

2021 2020
S $
AEZEME Honorarium paid to Council members 828,580 870,200

ERFFEE AR EBBREFRBEER MR
BHRZ > MEFSIREAEGEZERTEE
BASHUEFAEEDENEE 2R
FENPHFEEREBRBIZFET -

All transactions related to the procurement of goods and services
involving organisations in which a member of the Council and key
management personnel may have an interest are conducted in the normal
course of business and in accordance with the Council’s financial
obligations and normal procurement procedures.
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19. MEAHEEQRVEIER

19. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

TREMAGHRREFZBMMEEGENE  The table below details changes in the Council’s liabilities from financing
g BEREKRIEREEE - MEBEEEFT  activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
EEfNEaBELARESRAKRKREMAA  from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
BoAGgERRERERPHEEAMEE  cash flows will be, classified in the Council’s statement of cash flows as

BIFTEXRIREN o cash flows from financing activities.
HEaE
Lease liabilities
2021 2020
S $
W4E# At beginning of the year 27,942,569 -
MEREHREEEZEE) :  Changes from financing cash flows:
BAEEHRSMELRELS  Capital element of lease rentals paid (11,724,179) (6,559,246)
BIEEHRSMNF SS9  Interest element of lease rentals paid (589,873) (491,658)
OISR T 2 28488 Total changes from financing cash flows | (12,314,052)  (7,050,904)
15,628,517 (7,050,904)

Hfth&gh : Other changes:
HE&EFE Interest on lease liabilities 589,873 491,658
RERFTIFHEEMEMNEEaE

Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new leases during the year - 34,501,815
Hth&Eniea Totalotherchanges . 589873 34,993,473
EXR Atend of the year 16,218,390 27,942,569

20. EREMHERFNEKRERD 20. Hong Kong financial reporting standards issued but
FEAMBHREER not yet effective for the year

UFBEEGERFERRERERZEBM  HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the year include
BIEEER > SEERFEARGHEER the following HKFRSs which may be relevant to the Council’s operations

M EmRRAR and financial statements:
RIATEERRM
AEEX
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
EBMBRESENE /R FESHRERIESTER “ZE=%—H—H
HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments 1 January 2023
EBMBRSERNEIR (B5TEX) HISEXEZLEMT T "F—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
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20. Hong Kong financial reporting standards issued but
not yet effective for the year (continued)

HIATEERRM
HIABER
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

EBMFIREERNFON - BBGHERIFE305 - BBMBRGERE7 R - EBPHREENSEL - —F—F—H
EREBYBHREERFEIE (BFIER) FERRENE - F_[ER

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate Benchmark 1 January 2021
Reform — Phase 2

EBRNFHREERFI0ORKREBGERE28% (B5]F) REZFHAEHENEHEEFREZ CES-¥3
B EHESFTE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investorand — To be determined

its Associate or Joint Venture

ERNFHRESERE L5 (BIE)  Covid-19tGRFAEE % —ZETZFSA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-19 — Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
BERAGHENELIR (BIX) KREEFESRBHIERBUREEZES T (CE-FF) 2 “E_=F—H—H
TERAEET

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related 1 January 2023
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

BERGHERUNFELI6 (BFIX) Y% - BERRE — BEHFERFZigHE 2% —H—H
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
BERAGSERE37R (BFIE) EBESH — BITSABIZER % —H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract 1 January 2022
BERNTHRELER) (BF1X) BEUBHREERN _T—/)\FE_T_EFHNFENE 2 F%—H—H
Amendments to HKFRS, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018—-2020 1 January 2022

FENFEELBRERFERMZSEBYE
BEER c XFRIEFEELEMET K%
AIHERERABERMERNTE - ZE8A
Al NERBRMBREST AT ER R
AREASEEHEENMBBRRBEEATE -

21, BAMBERR

KHBRERENVN S -_—F/\B-+IH
BREENER T &M -

The Council has not early adopted these HKFRSs. The Council is in the
process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Council’s financial statements.

21. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on
24 August 2021.
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BR 7% # % Performance Pledges

BELEEREITFRENEBERE » 5] T —RIIBRF &G

We attach great importance to efficient and quality performance.
Our performance pledges are:

RIIEIT (L EERR) *

HEF:p
Hangllfmﬁifases Performance target
g (standard response time)*
BE G RS
. By telephone/in person Immediatel
53 y telephone/in p y
Enquiries
‘ BE B
In writing Within 10 days
—f%{E 2% Normal cases
MR FERRREF LR —HEANEMER
(BIEN°2 B 18 5% SRR B <F) . BﬂEE 7
Minor cases (such as Impoliteness or Neglect of Duty) Within 3 months
with no more than one round of Query raised by the
IPCC with CAPO
‘ #8 HE{E Z€ Complicated cases
BETB i RARIER Comp
la|nt5 ] ér'\ﬁm N = ek 0y F v E]m Wth 6 th
comp All serious cases (such as Assault or tnm 6 montns

Fabrication of Evidence) and minor cases with two or
more rounds of Queries raised by the IPCC with CAPO

B 1% {EZE Review cases
6{EA RN
ERENEBRRRFNEESEENENER 2
- Within 6 months

Requests for reviewing the classification of
Reportable Complaints

¥ ABERRERERKATRE EIEN B AR
Counting from the date of receipt of CAPQ’s final investigation report/response



BEE D IBRFREERITAERAE
EEEZBEPHRLAEES
RigE—FTRAEXRNRBER -

The Independent Police Complaints Council

does its utmost to discharge statutory duties

and identify improvements during vetting

to further enhance the service quality of the Police.

HERFAUAREEE @R OERE 81~ TRIE)  THE IHBEAERE > REGHARF—BUEBRSKE - TR
AMENRARIERS - ZIIRRFNOHBTIRBEL S - EANTREBNRBENGF > BYERE > BOEEM
BERBRFERGTE  BFHRAEERBERLE—27

Jigsaw puzzle was applied as the design theme for this Report. The interlocked jigsaw puzzle pieces engraved with the
three core values of the IPCC, viz. independence, impartiality and integrity, signified the IPCC’s commitment in upholding
its principles of handling all complaint cases fairly, impartially and based on evidence. The puzzle pieces also
represented that by reinforcing communication and collaboration between the IPCC, the Police and the public, mutual
trust could be built to strengthen the two-tier police complaints system and to rally concerted efforts to enhance the
service quality of the Police Force to our community.
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